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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of
China New Economy Fund Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Year").

The Company is a closed-ended investment company established on 1
February 2010. By investing in both private and public enterprises within
a diversified portfolio supported by the new economies of Greater China,
the Company is devoted to achieving long-term capital appreciation for
professional investors.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

During the Year, the Company maintained a long-term investment strategy
in both public and private equity markets. The Company held eighteen
equity securities listed in Hong Kong, one private equity fund and three
private equities as of 31 December 2018, in which the largest one is in the
financial services sector focusing on Hong Kong market. The Company
reported net loss attributable to shareholders of HK$92,959,437 during
the Year, which consisted of the net loss in fair value of HK$80,521,383
(Listed securities: loss of HK$59,592,713; unlisted securities: loss of
HK$20,928,670) taken on the investment positions in the portfolio.

The net asset value of the Company decreased during the Year
alongside with the slowdown in the Chinese economy and the rising
volatility of the Hong Kong stock market. As at 31 December 2018,
the Company reported an audited net asset value of approximately
HK$0.06 per share. The net loss is mainly attributable to both net
realised loss of HK$15,471,888 (Listed securities: loss of HK$30,057,839;
unlisted securities: profit of HK$14,585,951) and net unrealised loss
of HK$65,049,495 (Listed securities: loss of HK$29,534,874; unlisted
securities: loss of HK$35,514,621) on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss as a result of recent Hong Kong stock market volatility. The
Company will continue to monitor investments cautiously due to recent
uncertain market conditions.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
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BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECT

During the Year, China had been faced with complicated external and
domestic economic conditions, especially the China-United States trade
war gave a big impact to economy and the slowdown of gross domestic
product (GDP) growth. According to the National Bureau of Statistics,
China’s GDP recorded an increase of 6.9% in 2018, slightly higher than
6.5% targeted by the PRC Government in the beginning of 2018. The
government has indicated that the PRC economy has entered into a new
normal era. The new economy is showing signs of growth and strength,
which optimisation driven by technology advance and institutional
innovations.

Market confidence was generally impacted by China—United States trade
turbulence and uncertainty on macroeconomic outlook which led the
global stock market volatile. The securities markets in China and Hong
Kong have been full of ups and downs through 2018. The benchmark
Shanghai Composite Index and Hang Seng Index dropped by 24.59% and
13.61% in 2018 respectively. During the Year, the Company adopted a
timely and appropriate investment approach in response to the volatile
market sentiment and complicated government policies. The Company is
well aware of the challenges ahead and explored investment opportunities
emerging from the sectors benefiting from the economic transformation
in PRC, to obtain a substantial net asset appreciation. The Company will
continue to implement its comprehensive risk management strategy with
an aim to achieve growing returns on investments for our shareholders.

As global economy and politics are facing more risk, especially with the
China-United States trade war and US President Donald Trump’s swinging
politic risks. In the second half year of 2018, the global and domestic
economy slows down its growth due to ongoing China—United States
trade argument and downturn in the Chinese economy. China may
significantly hurt by tariff trade war in all indicators, including welfare and
GDP. Thus, these actions not only affect each other but also the entire
world. The Company will exercise risk management control to prevent the
potential risk to the portfolio. The Company expects that the US Federal
Reserve will be more cautious to raise interest rate regarding its inflation
rate and many expects one to two hikes by the end of 2019. In addition,
the PRC Government has lowered its 2019 GDP growth target at around
6% to 6.5%. Therefore, the Company remains cautiously optimistic on the
prospects of securities market in China and Hong Kong.
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The main focus of the Company is to invest in listed securities in short
to medium terms and will continue seek opportunities to invest in listed
company with high potential. During the Year, the Company has further
invested in several listed company in Hong Kong and the largest one is Kin
Pang Holdings Limited (1722.HK) which is principally engaged in provision
of building and ancillary services. Our portfolio also include newly invested
blue chips like China Construction Bank Corporation (00939.HK) and
China Life Insurance Company Limited (02628.HK).

The Company believes private equity investments shall diversify the risk of
investments and will potentially bring greater return in long terms with the
upcoming reform alongside with listed investments in portfolio. However,
the Company had no new private equity investment in the current year
and two private equity investments, Winhealth International Company
Limited and Alpha Financial Group Limited were sold for attractive returns
due to uncertain economic condition. In the near future, the Company will
continue to look for further investment opportunities in private equities
and other unlisted investments to benefit our investors and shareholders.

The Company will continue to deploy an investment strategy focusing on
Greater China and closely monitor changes in the global markets. With
our professional investment and risk management team, we are confident
to capture valuable investment opportunities to maximise profit for our
shareholders.

Gu Xu
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S BT

INVESTMENT REVIEW

The Company held twenty-two investments as of 31 December 2018,

comprising eighteen equity securities listed in Hong Kong, one private

equity fund in the Cayman Islands, two private equities in Hong Kong and

one private equity in British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the requirements stipulated in Rule 21.12 of Listing Rules,

the Company discloses its ten largest investments and all individual

investments with value exceeding 5% of the Company’s gross assets with

brief description of the investee companies as follows:

At 31 December 2018

Listed Equity Securities - Hong Kong

RERLE

ARARN2018F 12 A31HEFEAF -+ 28K
B ERBET N \ERESLMOERES
—ERHAEHENLEREES MEREHS
WILERER -—BREBELHENALER
T o

BIEEMRANE2112{EETHEMATE - AR F
WEE+TEEAEEMMEEREEBAAA
RIBEES%MIRE EREEARNER
RN

201812 A 31H

L E &

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year ~ Company
k5 5+ AAE RAEE AT
fisegfT HREAH AER B Sh/EK agE
FiREREEH e TS Riy#E  BRL B nE h&/ (B8  EETE ks BAt
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(B3E1) (Fr3k2)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T Thn Tin
(8)  Kin Pang Holdings Limited The Cayman lslands 34,980,000 3.50% 16,314 14,867 (1,447) MOP7.33 - 16.21
ordinary shares of million
HK$0.01 each
BEARARAR REHE 34,980,000 il
BREMR 7,330,000%
00182
(b)  Power Financial Group Limited Bermuda 126,400,000 4.54% 27,563 10,744 (16,819) HK$65.55 - 172
(Formerly known as Jun Yang ordinary shares of million
Financial Holdings Limited) HK$0.01 each
EReREEARAT BRE 126,400,000 65,550,000
(FIRERERERERAA) BRER BT
001%T2Z
(c)  Evershine Group Holdings Limited Hong Kong 4,047,000 0.22% 5337 5,099 (238) HK$0.31 - 5.56
ordinary shares million
KESERRARAR Bk 4,047,000 310,000

7 E
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Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
k5 BB ANF WMREE AL
FEE8T FREAR RER Bt 2h/ER hgE
FREARER AE I LUED- - vl S nE k(5B EEFE ks BAl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(Frk1) (By3E2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Th T ThT T
(d)  Hanvey Group Holdings Limited The Cayman Islands 25,960,000 2.60% 8,672 4543 (4,129 HK$2.00 - 4.95
ordinary shares of million
HK$0.01 each
EEEEERARAR RERS 25,960,000% 2,000,000
AR A7
001872
() China Construction Bank Corporation ~ PRC 520,000 - 3317 3354 37 CNY4.11 - 3.66
ordinary shares of million
CNY1 each
PERFRARHERLT Gl 5200008 ARE
ShERE 4,110,000
AE®17Z
(f China Life Insurance Company Limited ~ PRC 194,000 - 3,194 3,228 34 CNY0.06 - 352
ordinary shares of million
CNY1 each
PEARRBRRABRAT ke 194,000% N
SRAE 60,0007
AE®17Z
(9)  Town Health International Medical Group  Bermuda 29,114,000 0.39% 41,835 3,144 (38,691) HK$16.03 - 3483
Limited ordinary shares of million
HK$0.01 each
RRERBEZERRAA BRE 29,114,0008% 16,030,000
SRAE BT
001872
() Earthasia International Holdings Limited  The Cayman Islands 500,000 0.12% 1,750 2,385 635 HK$0.16 - 260
ordinary shares of million
HK$0.01 each
ERAARERARAA RERS 500,000 160,000
SRAE BT
001872

FEFEERABRAR /1R 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE AT wm BT

Private Equity — British Virgin Islands

RERE-RBELEHS

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
%5 BER ERE RAEE HALT
frisefT HREAH AR B Sh/EK agE
FiREARER M IS RfiFe  &xiLh B nE h&/ (B8  EETE k& BAt
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(B3E1) (3k2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
T Tin Thn Tin
() Gransing Financial Group Limited British Virgin lslands 48 shares of 17.52% 42,799 24,607 (18,192) HK$26.92 - 26.84
(Formerly known as Morris USD1 each million
Global Group Limited)
SHEREERRAT EBRAEE BRER 26,920,000
(MEEEREESE HE1XT BT
ARAR) b
Private Equity — Hong Kong HERE-—FE
Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company Year  Company
k5 BER ERF RAEE RALT
frseRfT KRELF AER Eff Bh/EK hgE
FiREAREH e L% Rt EALA S nE bi/(FB)  EEFE ks Bl
(Note 1) (Note 2)
(RsE1) (B3t2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
Th T Tk ThT
() Help U Credit Finance Limited Hong Kong 37,000 shares 19.95% 19,000 7,210 (11,730) HK$7.19 - 793
million
EANBERAR Bk 37,000 R 7,190,000
B

Jl/l/m
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At 31 December 2017

Listed Equity Securities - Hong Kong

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE S B DT

2017912 A31H

L EEEE &

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particularof  investee's Unrealised attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company year  Company
k5 R AhE RAEE  ARAF
FBEERT HRELA by 3] Efi Bh/EK hgE
fiREAA%R R ATE Ry AR A& HE W&/ (BB  EERE ks BAl
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(Bi3E3) (B3t2)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thm AL T T
Power Financial Group Limited Bermuda 140,000,000 454% 30,529 50,400 19.871 HK$91.22 - 26.17
(Formerly known as Jun Yang ordinary shares of million
Financial Holdings Limited) HK$0.01 each
BREREEARAT BRE 140,000,000 91,220,000
(MBEGERERERAR) BREG B
001872
Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited The Cayman lslands 18,493,000 1.28% 4218 5,455 1,238 HK$1.68 - 283
ordinary shares of million
HK$0.01 each
FERRARARARAT REHS 18,493,000 1,680,000
BREE BT
00131
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited The Cayman Islands 2,400,000 0.54% 3,360 4,080 720 HK$0.63 - 212
ordinary shares of million
HK$0.01 each
REEE 2,400,000% 630,000
SHER A7
00182
Town Health International Medical Bermuda 29,114,000 0.39% 41,835 3,686 (38,150) HK$16.07 82 191
Group Limited ordinary share of million
HK$0.01 each
FEHRZESEBRAA BRE 29,114,000 16,070,000
BREG BT
001812
Lerado Financial Group Company Limited Bermuda 90,000,000 3.91% 18,000 2113 (15,887) HK$53.63 - 1.10
ordinary shares of million
HK$0.5 each
EReREEERAA BRE 90,000,000 53,630,000
BREE BT
0581
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Management Discussion and Analysis
ER B RN

Private Equities — British Virgin Islands

RERE-RBELEHS

Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) tothe  during the of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company year  Company
1) BB ARF RMREE AARLE
FEEET FREAR R Bt Bh/EK hgE
fiR&ARAR A RfiFe  ExiLA B TE WE/(BR)  EERE k& [0
(Note 3) (Note 2)
(3t3) (zk2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000
Th THL Th T
Gransing Financial Group Limited British Virgin Islands 48 shares of 17.52% 42,799 43500 701 HK$31.54 - 2259
(Formerly known as Morris Global USD1 each million
Group Limited)
SRERREERAR ABRAEE BRERAE 31,540,000
(IREERERREERAR) 1%L RfA AT
WinHealth International Company Limited British Virgin Islands 84 shares of 8.40% 30,000 27,440 (2,560) HK$4.60 - 14.25
USD1 each million
REARERAR ABRAEE N 4,600,000
1% Kb BT
Private Equities — Hong Kong RERE-FE
Proportion Dividend % of
of Netasset  received/ gross
Particular of  investee's Unrealised  attributable  receivable assets
Place of issued shares capital Market  gain/(loss) to the during of the
Name of investee incorporation held owned Cost value  recognised Company  theyear  Company
%5 BB A0F RMREE ARRE
FBERT FREAR RER Bl Bl/EK BeE
FREAR AR A A Ritits  EALH AR HE bE/(FB)  EERE RE (50
(Note 3) (Note 2)
i) (Frst2)
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR T T T
Help U Credit Finance Limited Hong Kong 37,000 shares 19.95% 19,000 16,570 (2,430) HK$15.94 - 8.60
million
EARBERAR (30 37,000 Bt 15,940,000
BT
Alpha Financial Group Limited Hong Kong 555,555 shares 9.99% 8,000 11,350 3350 HK$5.97 - 5.89
(Formerly known as Ample million
Orient Capital Limited)
HRERSERRAA (2 555,555 Rk 7 5,970,000
(IRERFAAAERAA) BT
Sense Key Design Holdings Limited Hong Kong 199 shares 19.90% 25,000 7,176 (17,824) HK$0.94 - 31
million
RERHIRABRERAA B 199 f7 940,000
BT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(1) The unrealised gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the Year.

2) The calculation of net assets attributable to the Company is based on the latest
published interim/annual reports of the respective investments at the end of each
reporting period.

(3) The unrealised gain/(loss) represented the changes in fair value of the respective
investments during the year ended 31 December 2017.

A brief description of the business, financial performance and prospect of
the investments is as follows:

(@  Kin Pang Holdings Limited (“Kin Pang”) is principally engaged in
the provision of building and ancillary services. The unaudited profit
attributable to shareholders of Kin Pang for the six months ended 30
June 2018 was approximately MOP11,947,000 and the unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Kin Pang as at 30 June
2018 was approximately MOP209,442,000. Kin Pang expects that
the demand in the construction industry in Macau will keep growing.
Kin Pang will seek opportunities of new projects to achieve its
business objective by expanding its scale of operation. The fair value
of the investment in Kin Pang is based on quoted market bid prices.

(b)  Power Financial Group Limited (“Power Financial”) is principally
engaged in financial services businesses. The audited loss
attributable to shareholders of Power Financial for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$437,330,000 and
the audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Power Financial
as at 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$1,443,927,000.
In order to expand the scope of business and bring new dynamics
for revenue growth, Power Financial will continue to seek potential
investment and business opportunities for further development of
the existing business segments. The fair value of the investment in
Power Financial is based on quoted market bid prices.
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Evershine Group Holdings Limited (“Evershine Group”) is mainly
engaged in property development and investment business. The
audited loss attributable to shareholders of Evershine Group for
the financial year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
HK$105,087,000 and the audited net assets attributable to
shareholders of Evershine Group as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$139,209,000. Evershine Group expanded the
properties investment scale in Turkey. Since the Turkish government
has lowered the requirements for foreigners to acquire Turkish
citizenship, Evershine Group will provide opportunities for their
properties to generate considerable revenue in 2019. The fair value
of the investment in Evershine Group is based on quoted market bid
prices.

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (“Hanvey Group”) is principally
engaged in the design and development, manufacturing and
distribution of watch products. The audited loss attributable to
shareholders of Hanvey Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$7,104,000 and the audited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Hanvey Group as at 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$77,062,000. The growing
middle-class among the emerging market, Hanvey Group is shifting
its product focus from quartz watch to automatic mechanical watch.
Hanvey Group will source more automatic mechanical movement
suppliers and secure the supply across the globe. The fair value of the
investment in Hanvey Group is based on quoted market bid prices.

China Construction Bank Corporation (“China Construction
Bank”) is a commercial bank. The audited profit attributable to
shareholders of China Construction Bank for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately CNY254,655,000,000
and the audited net assets attributable to shareholders of China
Construction Bank as at 31 December 2018 was approximately
CNY1,976,463,000,000. In 2019, the banking industry in China
will still face a complex operating environment. China Construction
Bank will improve financial services and prevent financial risks and
enhance its capabilities of serving the real economy. The fair value
of the investment in China Construction Bank is based on quoted
market bid prices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

China Life Insurance Company Limited (“China Life”) is a life
insurance company provides a range of insurance products,
including individual and group life insurance, health insurance and
accident insurance products. The audited profit attributable to
shareholders of China Life for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately CNY11,395,000,000 and the audited net
assets attributable to shareholders of China Life as at 31 December
2018 was approximately CNY9,325,000,000. In 2019, China Life
will optimised their premiums payment structure and product
mix to improve business quality. With strengthened technological
innovation, China Life will improve customer experience and
implement its investment strategies of making long-term investment,
value investment and prudent investment. The fair value of the
investment in China Life is based on quoted market bid prices.

Town Health International Medical Group Limited (“Town Health”)
is principally engaged in the provision of healthcare and dental
services, managed care business and beauty and cosmetic medicine
business. The unaudited profit attributable to shareholders of Town
Health for the six months ended 30 June 2018 was approximately
HK$57,627,000 and the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of Town Health as at 30 June 2018 was approximately
HK$4,109,743,000. The trading of shares of Town Health has been
suspended since 27 November 2017. With favorable policy reforms
of the healthcare system by the PRC government, the demand for
high-quality healthcare services has been increased. Town Health
will take its operation model and its experience to develop its PRC
healthcare business. The fair value of the investment in Town Health
is based on valuation by independent valuer.

Earthasia International Holdings Limited (“Earthasia”) is principally
engaged in landscape architecture in Hong Kong, the Mainland
China and the Philippines. The unaudited profit attributable to
shareholders of Earthasia for the six months ended 30 June 2018
was approximately HK$2,090,000 and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Earthasia as at 30 June 2018 was
approximately HK$132,858,000. Earthasia will continue to focus
on landscape architecture and catering businesses in the future
and believes the revenue streams can be broaden by exploring new
business and investment opportunities in 2019. The fair value of the
investment in Earthasia is based on quoted market bid prices.
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(i) Gransing Financial Group Limited (“Gransing Financial”) is principally
engaged in provision of quality brokerage, corporate finance, asset
management, money lending and financial adviser services to
institutional and individual investors in Hong Kong and Mainland
China through its subsidiaries. The unaudited loss attributable to
shareholders of Gransing for the financial year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$20,700,000 and the unaudited net
assets attributable to shareholders of Gransing as at 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$153,678,000. Gransing Financial
has recently signed co-operative agreement with state-owned
Enterprises in Mainland China and it has high growth potential
with its new business. The fair value of the investment in Gransing
Financial is based on valuation by independent valuer.

()  Help U Credit Finance Limited (“Help U"”) is principally engaged in
money lending business in Hong Kong. Help U is a licensed money
lender and provides secured and unsecured loans to both individuals
and corporations. The unaudited loss attributable to shareholders
of Help U for the nine months ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$42,550,000 and the unaudited net assets
attributable to shareholders of Help U as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$36,049,000. Help U remain cautious with its
future outlook due to uncertain economic condition. The fair value
of the investment in Help U is based on valuation by independent
valuer.

The top three investments with realised gain and loss for the Year are
summarised as below:

Top three realised gain for the Year

Name of investment
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PETT o AR EEAM N THES - tE AH
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Realised gain

REER E# B R

HK$’000

FAET

WinHealth International Company Limited HfE B ER A A 10,586

Alpha Financial Group Limited BREAEBEBRAA

(Formerly known as Ample Orient Capital (RIBERRFEARGRAF])

Limited) 4,000

Kin Pang Holdings Limited ZISER AR A A 1,177

Top three realised loss for the Year

Name of investment

AEE=ZAREBEEEE

Realised loss

REERE C#EEE
HK$'000

FHET

China 33 Media Group Limited FE==EHEEFR QA 4,699
Time2U International Holding Limited I 8] B R B BRI IR B PR A ) 4,029
AMCO United Holding Limited ERERAER AR 3,500
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

The Company has maintained a sufficient cash position which will allow it
to capture opportunities with promising returns in both listed and private
equities.

As at 31 December 2018, the gearing ratio, defined as total debts divided
by shareholders’ equities, was 23.4% (31 December 2017: 61.5%). As at
31 December 2018, the Company has margin payable to securities brokers
of HK$17,155,239 with interest rate 12.125% per annum (31 December
2017: HK$5,646,820 with interest rate 8% per annum, a short term loan
HK$35,000,000 with interest rate 8.5% and one outstanding unlisted and
unsecured coupon notes at amortised cost of HK$31,976,320 with interest
rate 7.5% per annum).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
Year (2017: Nil).

CHARGES ON COMPANY’S ASSET AND
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had pledged Hong Kong listed
securities of approximately HK$48.2 million to secure the margin payables
to the broker (31 December 2017: HK$62.9 million).

There were no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On the Listing Date on 6 January 2011, the Company completed a share
placement and a total of 303,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
were placed at a price of HK$1.03 per share for a total cash consideration,
excluding the related issue expenses, for approximately HK$312.1 million.
Subsequent to the listing, the Company had completed several fund
raising activities and a capital reduction. As at 31 December 2018, the
capital of the Company comprises of 1,168,246,794 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each.
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RIGHTS ISSUE

Rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every eight existing
shares with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for
every one rights share taken up

During the Year, the Company had raised an approximately HK$47.1
million, net of expenses, by way of the rights issue of 97,353,899 rights
shares and 292,061,697 bonus shares to the qualifying shareholders at a
subscription price of HK$0.5 (effective subscription price HK$0.125) per
rights share on the basis of one rights share for every eight existing shares
with bonus issue on the basis of three bonus shares for every one rights
share taken up (closing price of the shares of the Company was HK$0.130
as at the date of announcement of the rights issue). The Company had
applied such net proceeds from the rights issue for repayment of loan in
the sum of HK$35,000,000 and partial repayment of coupon notes in
the sum of HK$31,500,000. Details of the rights issue were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 23 January 2018, circular dated 5
February 2018 and prospectus dated 6 March 2018.

CAPITAL REDUCTION

During the Year, the Company implemented the capital reduction
involving the reduction of the par value of each issued shares from
HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid up share capital to the extent
of HK$0.49 per issued ordinary share so that following such reduction,
each issued ordinary share with a par value of HK$0.50 in the share
capital of the Company shall become one new ordinary share. The credit
arising from the capital reduction had been applied towards offsetting
the accumulated loss of the Company. The balance of credit has been
transferred to the distributable reserve account of the Company which
may be utilised by the Directors as a distributable reserve. As a result of
capital reduction, par value of each of the 1,168,246,794 issued ordinary
shares has been reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 per issued ordinary
share by cancelling the paid up share capital to the extent of HK$0.49 per
issued ordinary share by way of a reduction of capital, so as to form issued
new ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 each, the Company’s
previous issued share capital of HK$584,123,397 has been reduced by
HK$572,440,929 to HK$11,682,468. Details of the capital reduction
can be referred to the announcements dated 1 August 2018 and 10
December 2018 and circular dated 20 August 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares during the Year.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENT

Save as disclosed in Note 29, as at 31 December 2018, the Company made
no capital expenditure or any other commitments (31 December 2017:
Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Year, the Company did not acquire or dispose of any
subsidiaries or associated companies (2017: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS AND INVESTMENT POLICY

The Company has twenty-two investments as of 31 December 2018,
comprising eighteen equity securities listed in Hong Kong, one private
equity fund and three private equities. The largest one held by the
Company is in the financial services sector focusing in the Hong Kong
market.

The rest of the net proceeds gained will be applied by the Board and the
Investment Manager in making investments according to the investment
objective, policies and restrictions of the Company and the requirements
of the Articles of Association of the Company, the Listing Rules and the
investment management agreement.

The proceeds shall normally be invested in listed and unlisted companies
considered to be high growth potential or to be with significant potential
return in such a variety of industry sectors in order to minimise the impact
of downturns. The Company shall not make any investment which would
expose the Company to unlimited liability. Any proceeds not deployed are
placed in bank deposits or invested in money market instruments or money
market funds.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had six full-time employees
(31 December 2017: three full-time employees). All of the Company’s
employees were based in Hong Kong.

The Company establishes its remuneration policy by making reference to
the prevailing market conditions and a performance-based reward system.
The policy is periodically reviewed. Apart from mandatory provident
fund, salaries increment, discretionary bonuses and share options may
be awarded to employees according to the assessment of individual
performance.

The total remuneration cost incurred by the Company for the Year was
approximately HK$2,699,065 (2017: HK$1,543,790).

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATION

The Board believes that foreign exchange risks are minimal as the
Company mainly uses the Hong Kong or United States dollar to carry out
its business transactions.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Placing of new shares under general mandate

After the reporting period, the Company has raised an approximately
HK$22 million, net of expense, by way of entering into a placing
agreement with the placing agent, to place 220,000,000 placing shares to
not less than six placees which are professional investors and independent
third party with the Company. The placing shares are issued at a gross
price of HK$0.1 and net price of HK$0.095 per placing shares (closing
price of the shares of the Company was HK$0.097 as at the date of
announcement) under the general mandate granted to the Directors at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 May 2018. The
Company had applied the net proceeds from the placing for investment in
line with its ordinary course of business and the general working capital of
the Company. Details of the placing of new shares under general mandate
can be referred to the announcement date 18 February 2019.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, audit plan and relationship with
external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules (the “CG Code").

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports for year 2018 and significant issues on the
financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems, scope of work and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties. The Audit Committee also met
the external auditors once without the presence of the executive Directors.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board hereby announces that the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 27 May 2019 to Thursday, 30 May 2019,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM"), all transfers of shares, accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 24 May 2019.
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Profiles of Directors

i

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gu Xu (“Mr. Gu”), aged 54, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, is responsible for the provision of leadership to the
Board and the Company’s business development and daily management
generally. Mr. Gu was appointed as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
on 28 May 2015 and has been appointed as executive Director of the
Company since 25 November 2010. Mr. Gu completed a bachelor’s degree
majoring in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
in 1986. He further received a master’s degree majoring in Economics from
the same university in 1989 and a master's degree majoring in Business
Administration awarded jointly by Fudan University and The University of
Hong Kong in 2003. Mr. Gu has accumulated 23 years’ experience in asset
management, investment and financial management in both financial
conglomerate and private company. He is the chairman of £/ R R &
‘&2 A [R A & (Shanghai Dongsheng Investment Management Co., Ltd.).
Mr. Gu has been appointed as independent supervisor of #x/i & EifH &
f& 1% A BR A 7] (Suzhou Financial Leasing Co., Ltd) in May 2016. Mr. Gu
has also been appointed as independent non-executive director of COSCO
SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd. (2866.HK), a company listed both in
Hong Kong and Shanghai, subsequent to his resignation as independent
supervisor in March 2018. Furthermore, Mr. Gu was the president of
Henan Zhong Yuan Lian Chuang Investment Fund Management Company
Limited from October 2015 to December 2018.
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Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (“Mr. Chan”), aged 55, has been appointed as an
executive Director since 1 June 2013. Mr. Chan is one of the responsible
officers of China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited. Mr. Chan is currently
a licensed person to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing
in futures contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading) and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO").
Mr. Chan obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of
Business Administration of The University of South Florida in the United
States of America. Mr. Chan is experienced in dealing in securities, fund
management, corporate management, corporate finance and managing
listed investment companies under Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules. Mr.
Chan is currently as an executive director of China Innovation Investment
Limited (1217.HK), China Investment and Finance Group Limited (1226.
HK), China Investment Development Limited (204.HK), Capital VC Limited
(2324 .HK) and National Investments Fund Limited (1227 .HK), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chan is also as an executive director
of China Trend Holdings Limited (8171.HK), a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
Agritrade Resources Limited (1131.HK) from June 2010 to October 2015.
He was an executive director of Alpha Returns Group PLC, an investment
company listed on AIM of London Stock Exchange, from May 2013 to
April 2018. Mr. Chan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Bingo Group Holdings Limited (8220.HK) in August 2007, and
redesignated as an executive director from April 2009 to September 2018.
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Profiles of Directors

i

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lam Chun Ho (“Mr. Lam”), aged 37, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 22 October 2014 and
redesignated as non-executive director on 25 April 2018. He is a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam graduated from Hong Kong
Baptist University with a bachelor degree of Business Administration in
Accounting. Mr. Lam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and he has over 12 years' experience in the
field of auditing, financial reporting and financial management. Mr. Lam
is currently a manager of a local corporate service company. Since 24
October 2014, Mr. Lam has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of China Wah Yan Healthcare Limited (648.HK), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pun Tit Shan (“Mr. Pun”), aged 58, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since 8 April 2016. He is a member
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Pun holds a master of business
administration degree (with honour) from the University of Manchester.
He has over 35 years’ experience in the finance field, such as strategic
dealing and arbitraging in the derivatives market, sales and marketing
management in the primary and secondary equity market and sales and
assets managing of high net-worth clients and investment advisory. Mr.
Pun has been appointed as the responsible officer of TC Concord Asset
Management Limited and TC Concord Securities Limited in March 2018.
He has also been appointed as an independent non-executive director
of Convoy Global Holdings Limited (1019.HK) in May 2016 and CPMC
Holdings Limited (906.HK) in September 2016, both shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Currently, he is the vice-
chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and Professional
Commentators Limited and the Honorary Consultant of Hong Kong
Ningxia Youth Association (BB ZEE S F&).
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Mr. Chong Ching Hoi (“Mr. Chong”), aged 36, has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director since 22 December 2017. He is the
chairman of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chong graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology with a bachelor degree of Business Administration in
Accounting in November 2004. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. He has more than 11 years of experience
in audit, accounting, financial reporting and compliance. Mr. Chong is
currently the chief financial officer and company secretary of Hao Bai
International (Cayman) Limited (“HBIC"), a company listed on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange (8431.HK). He has joined HBIC since March 2016
and is responsible for its compliance and corporate governance, preparing
group’s consolidated financial statements as well as reviewing and
implementing effective financial policies and internal control procedures.

Mr. Leung Wai Lim (“Mr. Leung”), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 10 October 2018. He is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee as well as a member of the Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Leung
obtained a bachelor’s degree in law from University of Wales in United
Kingdom in July 1995. He was admitted to practise law as a solicitor in
Hong Kong in August 1999 and in England and Wales in April 2001. Mr.
Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of Shun Wo
Group Holdings Limited (1591.HK), and Yield Go Holdings Ltd. (1796.HK),
both shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
He is an adjudicator appointed to the Panel of Adjudicators (Control of
Obscene and Indecent Articles) (established under the Control of Obscene
and Indecent Articles Ordinance (Chapter 390 of the Laws of Hong Kong))
and a member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) in
Hong Kong. He is also a panel member appointed by the Secretary for
Transport and Housing to the Transport Tribunals’ Panel and a member of
the Transportation and Logistics Committee (co-option) of the Law Society
of Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of law related working
experience. He has been a partner of Howse Williams Bowers since May
2015. He was employed by DLA Piper from February 2001 to April 2009
at which his last position was partner. He was then employed by Eversheds
from May 2009 to April 2015 at which his last position was partner.
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Report of the Directors
EERHE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and audited financial
statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Company is an exempted limited liability company, incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 1 February 2010 for the purpose of acting as a closed-
ended investment company.

The Company is principally engaged in investing globally in both private
and publicly listed enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of the mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange with effect from 6 January 2011 (the “Listing Date”). The
Company had not commenced any operation or business before the
Listing Date.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Discussion and analysis of the business review as required by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, including risks facing by the Company,
important events affecting the Company, that have occurred since the
end of the Year, likely future development in the Company’s business can
be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report. These discussions form part of this “Report
of the Directors”.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Company for the Year are set out in the financial
statements on pages 66 to 159.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividends for the Year
(31 December 2017: Nil)

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Company for the
Year is set out on page 160.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in the
statement of changes in equity to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital during the Year are set out in
Note 23 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE LISTED
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not purchase, redeem or sell any of the Company’s listed
shares during the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Gu Xu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Chun Ho
(Redesignated on 25 April 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pun Tit Shan
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi
Mr. Leung Wai Lim
(Appointed on 10 October 2018)
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub
(Resigned on 10 October 2018)

In order to comply with the requirements of the code provision A.4.2
of the CG Code, Mr. Gu Xu, Mr. Pun Tit Shan and Mr. Leung Wai Lim
shall retire at the AGM. The retiring Directors are being eligible to offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report are set
out in the section headed "Profiles of Directors” on pages 22 to 25 of this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors
EFEHE

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

Details of the fee or emoluments of Directors during the Year are set out in
Note 8 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Company’s operations. The Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreement during the Year or there was not any
subsisting equity-linked agreement entered into by the Company at the
end of the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Company is devoted to promoting and maintaining the environmental
and social sustainable development. As a responsible enterprise, the
Company is in compliance with all the material relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong in terms of the environmentally friendliness,
health as well as safety and adopts effective measures, conserves energy
and reduces waste.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company’s operations are mainly carried out in Hong Kong and
accordingly shall comply with material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong. During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has complied with all the material relevant laws and regulations
in Hong Kong.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director of the
Company together with every former Director of the Company shall
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability,
action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses, including
legal expenses, whatsoever which they or any of them may incur in the
execution of their office or otherwise in relation thereto. During the Year,
appropriate Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance coverage had
been arranged in respect of legal action that might be taken against the
Directors and Officers of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation (if any).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Other than the “Investment Management Agreement” mentioned below,
no contracts of significance, to which the Company was a party and in
which any Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save the respective Investment Management Agreement and Potential
Conflicts of Interest disclosed on pages 32 to 33 of the Report of the
Directors, the Company has not entered into any contract with any
individuals, firms or corporate entities to manage or regulate the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executives of
the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).
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Report of the Directors
EFEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'/OTHER PERSON'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2018, the following person (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each of the
Company

Number of

Capacity in which

Name of shareholder shares are held

shares held
(Direct interests)

FERR HMATRARGRAEE
RpzEER AR

BRI AD 2 i

R2018F 12 A31H W NA L (BEEHAR
AEETHABRIN RARQ R Z R HEE
RO HERIEES MBS RIS 3361655
RARBBFFEZELMAZERIAR

RE LR BE K EIE 0.50 8702 B BER KRG 4
E

Approximate %
Number of of issued
shares held share capital of

(Indirect interests) the Company

RN
FERHER FERHER BRTHREAZ
M. EES RETER A 2 5% (E#ERER) (BEER) BMAED
Kwok Shun Tim Interest in controlled corporation - 247,219,664 21.16
(Note)
BaE ok NG (BF&E)
Morris Global Capital Limited Beneficial owner 189,939,664 - 16.26
ExEEA
Wang Xin Beneficial owner 135,186,628 - 11.57
Fo7 ExEEA
Ye Yifeng Beneficial owner 64,700,000 - 5.54
s ExEEA
Note: P E -

Such shares comprise: (a) 189,939,664 shares, representing approximately 16.26% of the
Company’s total issued shares, held by Morris Global Capital Limited (“MGC") which are
wholly owned by Mr. Kwok Shun Tim (“Mr. Kwok"); and (b) 57,280,000 shares, representing
approximately 4.90% of the Company’s total issued shares, held by Gransing Assets
Management Limited (“GAM") which are held indirectly by Mr. Kwok. Therefore, Mr Kwok is
deemed to be interested in the 247,219,664 shares of the Company by virtue of his interests in
MGC and GAM.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Company has
not been notified by any other persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares and debentures”) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company had the following continuing connected
transactions, details of which were disclosed in compliance with the
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Custodian Agreement

The Company had appointed Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch (the
“Custodian”) as custodian since 2015. The custodian agreement with
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch (the “Custodian Agreement”) was
effective and will continue to be in force until terminated by either the
Company or the Custodian by giving the other party not less than one
month advance notice in writing.

Pursuant to the Custodian Agreement, the Company will pay the
Custodian a monthly fee of the higher of (a) the net asset value of the
Company at valuation day equal to the rate 0.02% per annum, or (b)
USD2,500 per month for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September
2018 and USD3,750 per month from 1 October 2018 respectively.

During the Year, the total custodian fee of HK$264,895 was paid by the
Company to the Custodian.
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EFEHE

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

Investment Management Agreement

Pursuant to the investment management agreement dated 30 December
2016 (the “Investment Management Agreement”), the Company re-
appointed China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited (the “Investment
Manager”) as its investment manager to provide the Company with
investment management services for another period of three years from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2019. The Investment Manager is entitled
to receive from the Company a management fee accruing monthly at the
annual amount of HK$960,000 and payable monthly in arrears from 1
January 2017 onwards.

During the Year, the management fee of HK$960,000 was paid by the
Company.

The Investment Manager is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under Rule 21.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
service provided by the Investment Manager to the Company under the
Investment Management Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ OPINION ON CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In the opinion of the Directors, including the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, the terms of and the transactions contemplated
under the Investment Management Agreement and the Custodian
Agreement have been entered into after arm’s length negotiation, on
normal commercial terms, and in the ordinary course of business of the
Company, and are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company
and the shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Company’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect of
the non-exempt continuing connected transactions disclosed above by
the Company in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock

Exchange.

POTENTIAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Currently the Investment Manager and their directors, officers and
employees provide management and advisory services to a number of
hedge funds, mutual funds and managed discretionary accounts with
similar investment objectives to the Company.

From time to time conflicts of interest may arise between the interest of
the Company and those of other clients. In such situations, the Investment
Manager will have regard to its obligations to the Company to act in the
best interests of the Company, so far as is practicable having regard also to
its obligations to the other clients.

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee is a Director of the Company and the Investment
Manager and is involved in the day-to-day operations of each of these
entities. This may give rise to conflicts of interest.

As the overall interests of the Company and Investment Manager are
aligned, the Directors are of the view that Mr. Chan will be able to act
in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. In addition,
all major decisions of each of these companies will be made by their
respective Board of Directors of these companies as a whole and not at
the sole discretion of Mr. Chan. In the case of the Company, this includes
the independent non-executive Directors, non-executive Director and the
executive Director, Mr. Gu Xu.

Mr. Chan will maintain confidentiality in respect of the information of each
of the funds managed by the Investment Manager. They are also aware
of their obligations under the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong’s Internal Control Guidelines that they are required to establish and
ensure the integrity and security of all information relevant to the business
operations of the respective entities.
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EFEHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect of the shares of
the Company under the articles of association of the Company although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Save as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 36 to 49,
the Company has complied with all applicable code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this report.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after 31 December 2018 are set out
in Note 31 to the finance statements.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had six full-time employees, two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. Details of the fees or emoluments of Directors in
respect of their services rendered to the Company and staff cost during
the Year are set out in Note 8 and Note 9 respectively to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors
EEgHRE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT TEAREFRE

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and  1RIEAR R A HISHEER LESHAE 1
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a  ZAN¥R%E B 8] - KA RIRE Ei8 Bl 2 48 E 4+

7\

sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules as at the date of ~ 7& 8 A RFFRE ©

this report.

On behalf of the Board REXES=S
Gu Xu &
Chairman e
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of the Company has committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that a good corporate
governance standard will provide a framework for the Company to
formulate its business strategies and policies, and manage the associated
risks through effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance the
transparency and accountability of the Company to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders and creditors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied most of the principles set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view
that throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company was
in compliance with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, save
and except for the deviation from code provisions A.2.1. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as the details
of the deviation are summarised in the section headed “Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer” on page 39.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for dealing in securities
of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry to all
the Directors of the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six members, two
of which are executive Directors, namely Mr. Gu Xu, who is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and Mr. Chan Cheong Yee.
The other four members comprise one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Lam Chun Ho, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Pun Tit Shan, Mr. Chong Ching Hoi and Mr. Leung Wai Lim. There is no
relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among members of the Board. The biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages
22 to 25 of this annual report.
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The Board held eight meetings during the year ended 31 December
2018. The Board is responsible, inter alia, for establishing the investment
objective and policies of the Company, complying with the Company’s
investment restrictions, for monitoring the Company’s performance and
for the appointing, supervising, directing and, if necessary, removing any
of the Company’s service providers, including the Investment Manager.

Current composition of the Board, including names of the independent
non-executive Directors, is disclosed in all corporate communications to
shareholders of the Company.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information and accounts
of the Company. The Directors may seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense of the Company. The
Company will, upon request, provide separate independent professional
advice to the Directors to assist them to discharge their duties to the
Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Company’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Company’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place. All Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for
its efficient and effective functioning. The independent non-executive
Directors are responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory
reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the Board for
bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All
Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.

A summary of training received by Directors during the year ended 31
December 2018 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
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follows:

Name of Directors

Seminar and training on
corporate governance,
regulatory development
and other relevant topics

BREXES EERRR

EEgE HitEmEENBEEREI
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Gu Xu AN 5t &= 4
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee PREZE L4 4
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lam Chun Ho MRS EE

(Redesignated on 25 April 2018) (FR20184F 4 A 25 H#(E) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFHITES
Mr. Pun Tit Shan % 15 3 5 4 v
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi S EE v
Mr. Leung Wai Lim RMEREE

(Appointed on 10 October 2018) (FA2018%F 10 B 10 B EZ ) v/
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub %t 4

(Resigned on 10 October 2018) (A 20184E 10 A 10 B BHE) v
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the Year, Mr. Gu Xu had been the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He provided leadership to the
Board and is responsible for the Company’s business development and
daily management generally. The Board believes that vesting the roles
of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same individual can
provide the Company with strong and consistent leadership and allows for
effective and efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority
is adequately ensured by the operations of the Board which comprises
experienced and high-calibre individuals, with three of them being
independent non-executive Directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Board has at all times complied with the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to having a minimum of three independent
non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board)
with one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each of
the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference which
deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are available to the shareholders on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

All members of each Board committee consist of non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Directors only and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this annual report.
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TEEAWMSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in reviewing the financial information and reporting process, risk
management and internal control systems, audit plan and relationship with
external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the Company
to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in CG Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings to review interim and annual
financial results and reports for year 2018 and significant issues on the
financial reporting, operational and compliance controls, the effectiveness
of risk management and internal control systems, scope of work and
appointment of external auditors, and arrangements for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors once without the
presence of the executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation) (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; (ii) determining
the terms of the specific remuneration package of the Directors and
senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Directors from time to time. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms than those set out
in the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings to consider the relevant
matters regarding the remuneration policy and structure of the Company
and the remuneration packages of the executive Directors and senior
management and other related matters. The Remuneration Committee
also made recommendations to the Board on the terms of service
agreement of the new independent non-executive Director appointed
during the Year.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board and making
recommendations to the Board on the proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment of
Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Company’s Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee would also discuss and make
recommendations to the Board on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria as
set out in the Director Nomination Policy that are necessary to complement
the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate,
before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors, to consider the qualifications of the
retiring Directors standing for election at the AGM and to consider and
recommend to the Board on the appointment of Mr. Leung Wai Lim as
independent non-executive Director.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted an updated Board Diversity Policy which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure that the
Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and
assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee is committed
to diversity at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and is
also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices at all
levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured so that a
diverse range of candidates are considered.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board

is sufficiently diverse and will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of
the Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and
the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and
corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender, age (18
years or above), cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the Board
and independence of the proposed Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the
selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at
general meetings.
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ERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions as set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. During the Year, the Board had
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and
Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RE-ELECTION

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code states that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The independent non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of 3 years,
subject to renewal after the expiry of the current term.

The circular to shareholders of the Company with notice of the AGM
contains biographical details of all the Directors proposed to be re-elected
at the meeting to enable shareholders of the Company to make an
informed decision on re-election of Directors.
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TERERRE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AT EEHESRER
MEETINGS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and Board Committee S EEHEAR TN EZ 2018412 A31 HIE
meetings and the general meetings of the Company held during the year FERITHNEZERE=EZE a2 UARKE
ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the table below: ARERBFERHNR TR

Meeting attended/held
HEERRY BTEENY
Annual/
Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meetings
BRRAE/

EZE® FNZEEE FMZEEEe REZEE BEAE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Gu Xu BBLAE 8/3 - = = 33
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee BREZELE 8/8 - - = 23
Non-executive Director *HBTES

Mr. Lam Chun Ho MR TE 8/8 212 22 22 33

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

Directors
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris lorahim Taha Ayoub %54
(Resigned on 10 October 2018) (74 20184F 10 A 10 A& E) 3/8 02 02 072 13
Mr. Pun Tit Shan & A 8/8 212 212 212 33
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi HEd AL 8/8 22 22 22 33
Mr. Leung Wai Lim' RMREAE! 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
Note: Bt 5
1. Mr. Leung Wai Lim was appointed as an independent non-executive Director, a member 1. 2MEFERTER2018F 10 A 10 BEZEAAR AE
of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and chairman of the Nomination VIHATES BREEGRFMEESKEUR
Committee of the Company on 10 October 2018. The Board had not held any Board REZEGEIF NEEZA%R ESSULARAEH
Meeting, Audit Committee Meeting, Remuneration Committee Meeting, Nomination IHEEEees FXLEECCRE FHNEEEE
Committee Meeting and annual/extraordinary general meeting after his appointment. &% REZEESHRRRAE BRAE -

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meeting RAEE - BREHBRITESS SR - THER
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of fE)RBHITE R L FHIEN T EEIB L IEHhTE
executive Director during the Year. ERTEE o
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for each financial year and to present the interim results, annual financial
statements, and related announcements to shareholders.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The statement of the independent auditors
of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 59 to
65.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are in place both at the
Company and the Investment Manager level. The Investment Manager
has in place a comprehensive risk management and internal control policy
which includes procedures requiring regular performance of various risk
analytics on the Company’s portfolio and close monitoring of the portfolio
against the Company’s investment objective, policies and restrictions.
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At the Company level, a risk committee which is consisting of Mr. Chan
Cheong Yee, an executive Director, and Mr. Lam Chun Ho, an non-
executive Director, is responsible for monitoring the operational and
portfolio risks to the Company and monitoring the Investment Manager
including reviewing whether the investment objectives, policies and
restrictions are being followed by the Investment Manager. In case of any
deviation, the risk committee will discuss deviations with the Investment
Manager immediately and monitor remedial action. For all material
deviations, the risk committee will formulate recommendations to the
Board on the appropriate remedial actions to be made. The risk committee
meets on a monthly basis, or more regularly if a meeting is requested by
any risk committee member.

The Board, as supported by the risk committee, the Audit Committee
as well as the management report, reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems, including the financial, operational and
compliance controls, for the Year, and considered that such systems are
effective and adequate. The annual review also covered the financial
reporting and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for the
Year is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” in
this annual report.

During the Year, the remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s
independent auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, for audit
services is HK$730,000, and non-audit service is HK$ 11,000 respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tai Man Hin Tony, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is the
company secretary of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary on corporate governance and board practices and matters.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Tai has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training respectively in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convening extraordinary general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands Companies Law (2013
Revision). However, shareholders are requested to follow Article 25.3 of
the Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to Article 25.3 of
the Articles of Association of the Company, general meetings shall be
convened on the written requisition of any members of the Company
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than ten per cent in the Net Asset Value of the shares
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to
be held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner, as
nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the
Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months after the 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director of the Company are laid down in Article 34.3 of the Company’s
Articles of Association. No person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Board for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice in writing
of the intention to propose such person for election as a Director, signed
by a shareholder (other than the person to be proposed for election as
a Director) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which
such notice is given, and a notice in writing signed by such person of
his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the registered
office of the Company. The minimum length of the period during which
such notices are given shall be at least seven (7) days and the period for
lodgement of such notices shall commence on the day after the dispatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or request to the Company, for
the attention of Company Secretary, by fax: (852) 2706 9544, or mail to
Suite 902, 9/F, Ovest, 77 Wing Lok Street, Hong Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, through annual general meetings or other general meetings.
The Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee will make
themselves available at the annual general meeting to meet with the
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.chinaneweconomyfund.com, where up-to-date information and
updates on the Company’s financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company do not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the conditions
and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed
and/or declared by the Board during a financial year and any final dividend
for a financial year will be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI e kEamE

This Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) report (the “ESG
Report”) has been prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (“ESG Reporting Guide”) as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange. In respect
of the information concerning “corporate governance”, please refer to the

relevant parts of the Company’s annual report.

The ESG Report describes the ESG performance made by the Company
during the Year. The scope of the ESG Report covers the business
operation in the management head office at Hong Kong.

The Board of the Company recognises the importance of ESG in meeting
the changing expectations of stakeholders while enhancing the value and
performance of the Company. Hence, the Board working together with
the management has taken on the overall responsibility of assessing and
identifying risks associated with ESG matters of the Company, and engage
in the mission to promote environmentally and socially sustainable culture
among all its employees to maintain long-term growth of the Company.
This culture enables the Company to formulate appropriate ESG policies
and procedures, to monitor and measure the progress of the ESG efforts,
and also to report on its performances to investors and key stakeholders.

The Company values its stakeholders and their views relating to its
businesses and environmental, social and governance issues. In order
to understand and address stakeholders’ concerns, the Company
communicates with its key stakeholders including but not limited to
investors, customers, government bodies, employees, suppliers and
communities through different channels.

In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Company
takes into account the stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve its
performance through mutual cooperation with the stakeholders, resulting
in creating greater value for the community.

The aspects and key performance indicators as defined in the ESG

Reporting Guide which were considered to be relevant and material to the
Company will be presented below.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2018

ARE -H@ReER((RE HEaRERDR
& ([RE e REA®RE]) IR AT
Bz EHR BT ER27 AEIRIE - HERE
amEiEsl ([RE -HEREARERESID R
2oBRIEXEERINER F2HAARAZ
FEREFT ZAEIMH

IRE - HERERAREHAARRNEAFE 2
RECHERERRR - IRIE -HLERERR

EVHEREE BTN BRI EBEE -
RARZEESRBINIRE HEREREME
BhETEE L ERIESAQREBEEME
RAEEEZH Bt - EFRERERED
ZHEBENMERBIEAARRE HgRER
FHEZEERK  WEREES ZHELBERE
RagrHEEE XL UBEREAARZRER
BFE - WXEBARRGIEEERE g

RERBURRER ERRAERE #H8Kk
ERLIEER  ARAKREEREEHHER
HHEREHE -

ARBERFF N EREHARBERRIREF
HEREREEZER - ABEBLOESNE
FEHEE  ARRETIZRNE (BRET

RRIEE - BF  BUTKE B8 - HER
Kt E e %) AT RIREER

FEHIR] &E RIS IR - g RERIEIER
K"ﬂ%)‘é?—ﬂﬁﬁzﬁﬁtﬁ B BB A EEAR

NETHREERE  RUSMERKEE-

R HekEaMSHEIMATARERY
ARFENEBRENRENZ EENERENIE
BRRTXZ5 -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL AREA

Aspect A1: Emissions and Waste

During the Year, the Company has complied with relevant
environmental laws and regulations, including Air Pollution Control
Ordinance (Chapter 311 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Waste Disposal
Ordinance (Chapter 354 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Water Pollution
Control Ordinance (Chapter 358 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Noise Control Ordinance (Chapter 400 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that has an impact relating to air and
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions, discharges into water and land,
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Company
during the Year (2017: Nil).

No fines or non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations had been reported during the Year
(2017: Nil).

Due to nature of the Company’s business, it produces no direct air
or direct GHG emissions. A small amount of GHG were emitted
indirectly during the Year from the consumption of electricity in
the office, which was supplied by power station where GHG were
directly emitted.

No hazardous waste was produced and there was no discharge into
water and land during the Year (2017: Nil). An insignificantly small
amount of non-hazardous wastes were collected at the office, which
were primarily waste paper, office supplies, and domestic wastes.

Despite minimal impact to the environment, the Company has
implemented environmental-friendly measures to manage GHG
emissions and waste production as described in the later section
titled “environmental-friendly measures”.
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BRI e kEamE

Scopes of GHG emissions BEREHKZERE

Scope 1 — Direct emissions from operations that are owned or #HE1 - BARAMERRIEH 2%
controlled by the Company, such as the use of company BEEZEEHEWN WUER
vehicle; NEIEEH

Scope 2 — Energy indirect emissions resulting from purchased #HE2 - BARAERIINBEHAE
electricity consumed by the Company; A7 sE IR BER

Scope 3 — Other indirect emissions that occur outside the 3 - ARFUINESE 2 HMAEE
Company, including both upstream and downstream PEnk - BIE L R T 2 BE
emissions, such as methane gas generation at landfill oo PATEHEE R EEREARFT
due to disposal of paper waste, GHG emissions due to EEZRE - BRAEFIEE
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage RIKR75KEFERE N5
by government departments and business air travel by BHORAEREHEN  UKRE
employees. 8 FH B IR 1T RS R o

The amount of emissions under these different GHG scopes in CO; RAREE  ZETRE=EREHET 2

equivalent (“CO,e") during the Year was as follows: BEWE L Z&tixEE ([ Z&8tikE

BIXRR)AT :
(Units: Tonnes of CO,e) 2018 2017
(Bfy - M—E{HREE) 2018 20174
Major Emission Emission
GHG emissions sources volume Intensities volume Intensities
BERBHK TERR e BE HemE g
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(B&E1) (BiFsE1)

Scope 1

EE1

Direct emissions Nil - - - -

BEHEMN i

Scope 2

HikE2

Energy indirect emissions Purchased electricity 4.06 0.68 5.29 1.32

BB R 8 B2 HE A BEE

Scope 3

EE3

Other indirect emissions Disposal of paper 0.20 0.03 N/A N/A

H it BN EEREN TE R TiE

Total GHG emissions 4.26 0.71 5.29 1.32

BERBHENRAS

Note 1: Intensity is measured by dividing the relevant emissions by the number of Mk 1 : BmERRAFERZBEHERERAESH

employees as at the end of the Year. BEtE -

The Company generates no scope 1 emissions and an insignificant RAFE - ARARIWEEEHE 1 ZHEM

amount of scope 3 emissions during the Year. Approximately 4 Y REEVEGEI R - AFE

tonnes of scope 2 emissions was generated during the Year. The EELABRERE2 2 BERY) - BRAR R

emission has been consistent since there has been no change in the ZENFRAEALEES  HRE—E

pattern of the Company’s electricity usage. HFFIZGE ©
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Aspect A2: Use of Resources

As detailed in the section headed “Emissions and Waste”, electricity
consumption was a major source of indirect GHG emission during
the Year. The consumption of electricity was similar to that in the
same period in previous year. The amount of consumption by types
of energy or resources during the Year was as follows:

RIE - g MEAWRE

EBmEA2: ERER

WIgER ) M EERY) | — i - BE
AANEERZREREBIRZ TZHRT -
REEREZFRMESL -RAFE &
EERKERBRIE D 2 HFEEMT ¢

2018 2017
20185 20174

Energy and resources Units Amount Intensities Amount Intensities
BERK &R B BE RE HE TR

(Note 1) (Note 1)

(HEE1) (f&E1)
Electricity kWh 5,143 857 6,690 1,673
BN TR
Paper Kilograms 7 N/A N/A
MR S i@ H i A

Note 1: Intensity is measured by dividing the relevant emissions by the number of
employees as at the end of the Year.

The Company consumes water in the office from a centralised water
and sanitation system implemented in the building. The cost of water
consumption of the Company is inclusive in the monthly rent, and
the building management does not individually measure the water
consumption of each tenant and hence no relevant data can be
collected.

Due to the nature of the Company’s business no packaging material
was used.

Paper was primarily used for office printing. The Company has begun
to collect paper consumption data during the Year and a total of
approximately 42 kg of paper was consumed. There was no change
in the usage pattern of paper during the Year compared to previous
years.

Despite minimal impact to the environment, energy and resource
conservation are essential parts of the Company ESG strategy which
will be detailed in the later section titled “environmental-friendly
measures”.
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Aspect A3: Environment and Natural Resources

The Company does not use any natural resources in the process of
its business, and hence the impact on the environment or natural
resources was minimal during the Year. Nonetheless the Company is
well aware of the importance in environmental protection, and has
adopted policies and a range of measures to minimise current impact
and manage any potential adverse impact in the future, persisting in
conducting our business in an environmentally responsible manner.
These policies and measures are described below.

Environmental-friendly measures

The Company has always put great emphasis on energy and resource
conservation, which is shown by its engagement in energy savings
and implementation of workplace strategies to reduce energy and
water consumptions. Accordingly, the Company has the following
measures which are regularly carried out to achieve its ESG strategy
in the course of the Company’s operations:

1. Employees are encouraged to use video/telephone
conferencing system to reduce business travel and take public
transportation wherever possible to avoid lower environmental
impact from the burning of fossil fuel.

2. The Company has also implemented energy and water saving
practices, such as maintaining workplace temperature at a
comfortably low level with reference to the relevant standard
recommended by the Electrical & Mechanical Services
Department of the Hong Kong Government to reduce energy
use.

3.  Engaged in environmental-friendly measures in the workplace
in the effort to lower energy consumption, for instance,
employees of the Company are reminded to minimise their
impact on the environment and the use of natural resources
when conducting business.
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4. Waste reduction measures include monitoring and recording
paper usage on a monthly basis, and promoting the use of
recycled paper and print double-sided are actively adopted
wherever possible.

5. The Company’s efficient use of resources and waste reduction
initiatives and guidelines are stipulated in the Staff Handbook
and policies where appropriate to educate and promote ESG to
employees.

SOCIAL SUBJECT AREAS

Aspect B1: Employment

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets
of the Company. Remuneration Committee was set up to providing
a fair and equitable workplace environment for employees, and
ensures that they are reasonably remunerated.

The Company has incorporated guidelines into the Staff Handbook,
covering all aspects of employment, including working hours, rest
periods, salary and welfare, code of conduct, and anti-bribery.
Employment policies in the Staff Handbook have been reviewed and
regularly updated.

The Company has fully complied with the Employment Ordinance,
the Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480), the Disability
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 487), the Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527) and the Race Discrimination
Ordinance (Chapter 602). The Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that has
an impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare during the Year
(2017: Nil).

As at the end of Year there was six full-time employees employed by
the Company (2017: three staff worked as full-time and one was as
part-time). One employee left the Company during the Year (2017:
Nil). The Company is based in Hong Kong and all of its employees
work at the Hong Kong office.
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety

The Company is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment for all of its employees, protecting them from any
potential occupational hazards. The tasks of the employees are
mainly office-based, and thus safety issues are not as pertinent
to the job nature. The Company also offers coverage on medical
insurance (including in-patient and out-patient) and compensation
to employees in the matter of sickness and work-related injury.
During the Year, the Company complied with all relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509) in Hong Kong.

Aspect B3: Development and Training

The Company attaches great importance to the staff development
and quality of employee. The Company has offered training
opportunities from external organisations, and offers flexible training
time to facilitate employees to reinforce skill sets and to keep up-to-
date with the latest knowledge in their profession.

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

The Company is committed to comply with all applicable labour laws
and regulations on employment in Hong Kong.

The Company respects human rights and treats this as an important
factor when making investment in human capital in comprehensive
screening process in order to recruit employees with good quality.

Employee work schedules are set up fairly to keep within standard

work hours and the employees are entitled to annual leave, sick
leave, marriage leave, maternity leave and compassionate leave.
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Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

The Company’s principle activity is investment holding. Unlike
those companies which manufacture, trade or provide services, the
Company has relatively few suppliers and a very simplistic supply
chain. The environmental and social impact with regards to supplier
chain is relatively low.

The Company’s suppliers are mainly those third-party suppliers
providing services such as information technology, property
management, advertising, legal and consulting, and third-party
suppliers of goods such as office equipment, and printing and
stationery. All of the suppliers were based in Hong Kong.

The Company maintains practices that build up positive relationships
with its suppliers as well as focusing on service quality when selecting
suppliers. The Company purchases from a list of approved suppliers
that have been awarded for their quality of goods and services
through the selection process.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Due to the Company’s business nature, it does not deliver a product
or service and hence product responsibility is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has complied with relevant law and regulations
with regards to data protection and privacy when transacting with
third-party and dealing with member share registration matters.
Unauthorised copying, dissemination or disclosure of confidential
information, including identities and records of transactions of
registered members, are strictly prohibited. During the Year, the
Company has not received any significant complaint from any
stakeholders (2017: Nil).

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

The Company has strict policies that ensures adherence to the
highest ethical standards and maintains a corporate culture
of integrity and justice to prevent, detect and report all types
of corruption, including bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering. In complying with provisions included in the Staff
Handbook, employees at all levels are expected to conduct in an
appropriate manner, with integrity, impartiality and honesty.
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The Company has complied with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance RNREIEESTH LRGN (BB AGIZE
(Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Anti-Money 2018) - ITEABRERMOTESES
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) (S REE) G0 (BB EOE615F) &
Ordinance (Chapter 615 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other RAEIREFTEME 2 HMECUERE -
relevant laws in regions in which the Company invests. The Company RARFE KRB AMEBESHEREZ
was not aware of any significant matter related to corruption during EfAIEEREIE (2017 F - &) °

the Year (2017: Nil).

Aspect B8: Community Investment [EEBS : HERE

The Company invests in the community by making significant RARFEBRIELERNMHKAALEKZE -
contributions where appropriate, as well as encourages employees WREE B TEEEB AERE S K
to participate in various local community activities and events on a 2MEEE T EITERIES -

voluntary basis.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

To the shareholders of China New Economy Fund Limited

(An exempted company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China New Economy Fund
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 66 to 159, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board (“IAASB”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Carrying amount of listed investments

As can be seen from Note 15 to the financial statements, the Company’s
listed investments comprised approximately 53% of the total of the
Company’s assets (by carrying value) as at 31 December 2018 and were
significant to the Company’s capital, financial position and financial
performance. Due to their materiality, they are one of the areas which had
the greatest effect on our overall audit strategy.

Our procedures over the existence, valuation and completeness of the
Company’s portfolio of listed investments included:

o Assessing the processes in place to record investment transactions
and to value the portfolio;

o Agreeing the pricing of all the listed investments to externally quoted
prices; and

o Obtaining from independent third party custodian confirmations on
all the listed investments.

Carrying amount of suspended listed investments

As disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the investment
portfolio of the Company as at 31 December 2018 also included
investments in suspended listed investments, which do not have an active
market.

We focused on this area because of the significance of these investments
in the financial statements, and because determining the valuation
methodology and the inputs involved high degree of estimation
uncertainty and required significant judgement to be applied by the
investment manager and the board of directors.
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Our procedures over the existence and valuation of the Company’s
portfolio of suspended listed investments included:

o Assessing the valuation methodologies applied for appropriateness
against accepted market practice;

o Assessing the assumptions made in determining the valuation of
these investments by considering factors which may impact their
fair values, including the duration of suspension period, the relevant
market information and news of the suspended listed equities, the
price movement of comparable listed equities or index during the
suspension period,;

o Comparing the assumptions used in the Company’s models and
methodologies to independent external sources where possible;

o Involving our valuation experts to assist in assessing the valuation
techniques and inputs used, particularly where the valuation inputs
were unobservable; and

o Evaluating the adequacy of financial statement disclosures.

Carrying amount of unlisted investments

As disclosed in Note 15 to the financial statements, the investment
portfolio includes investments in private equity funds and direct private
equity investments, all of which are unlisted and unquoted.

We focused on this area because of the significance of these investments
in the financial statements, and because determining the valuation
methodology and the inputs involved estimation uncertainty and required
significant judgement to be applied by the investment manager and the
board of directors.
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Our procedures over the existence and valuation of the Company’s
portfolio of unlisted investments included:

o Assessing the design and operating effectiveness of the financial
reporting controls we considered significant in the valuations and
model approval process;

o Assessing the valuation methodologies applied for appropriateness
against accepted market practice;

o Considering whether the application of methodologies is consistent
with generally accepted valuation methodologies and prior periods;

o Comparing the assumptions used in the Company’s models and
methodologies to independent external sources where possible;

° Involving our valuation experts to assist in assessing these valuation
techniques and inputs used, particularly where valuation inputs were
unobservable;

o Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as latest
financial information/statements approved by independent auditors;

o Comparing the recent transaction price with the valuation basis
provided by management; and

o Evaluating the adequacy of financial statement disclosures.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors of the Company are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hui Chun Keung, David.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chun Keung, David
Practising Certificate Number: P05447

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B LA R E SR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z=2018F 12 A31HILFE

2018 2017
2018 & 20174
Notes HK$ HK$
B 7 BT BT
REVENUE PN 5 9,403,558 821,073
Net loss on financial assets at AT EEBEBRIEREZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEEERFRE 6 (80,521,383) (472,963,362)
Other operating expenses HMEERSY (18,998,620) (13,713,844)
OPERATING LOSS EEEE (90,116,445) (485,856,133)
Finance costs B 75 B AN 7(a) (2,842,992) (23,520,463)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRF AT BT 1B 7(b) (92,959,437) (509,376,596)
Income tax expense FriE R 12 - (1,361,062)
LOSS AND TOTAL AATERERZFEA
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR EBEERBEREZE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EEARE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY (92,959,437) (510,737,658)
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE AR TEBEEBEZFEA
TO ORDINARY EQUITY EaERER
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
— Basic — B (0.09) (0.68)
— Diluted — g (0.09) (0.68)
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Statement of Financial Position

BIFSIRER

At 31 December 2018 72018 12H31H

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT B TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Deposits b 14 216,175 568,162
Total non-current assets EREBEELE 216,175 568,162
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TEfT 5RIE 14 564,493 410,943
Amount due from brokers FE YA 42 A FRIR 14 2,271,370 5,732,651
Financial assets at fair value through 2 /A (BB BIEZETI IR 2
profit or loss TREE 15 85,856,636 182,231,485
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeERE 17 2,787,626 3,653,633
Total current assets MBEELE 91,480,125 192,028,712
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIBERETEA 18 1,293,827 1,714,058
Amount due to brokers P 88 42 A SRR 19 17,155,439 5,646,820
Amount due to a related company  Eff —FERE R AIFIA 20 80,000 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings ERERKEE 21 - 66,976,320
Total current liabilities ne B EEE 18,529,266 74,417,198
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 72,950,859 117,611,514
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABEE
LIABILITIES 73,167,034 118,179,676
Net assets BEFE 73,167,034 118,179,676
EQUITY =
Issued capital B BITIRA 23 11,682,468 389,415,599
Reserves ] 61,484,566 (271,235,923)
Total equity EmgE 73,167,034 118,179,676
NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE BEREEZFE 0.06 0.15

Gu Xu
&8

Director

EF

Chan Cheong Yee
HE=
Director

EF

FEFEERABRAR /1R 2018



Statement of Changes in Equity
ERB B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z=2018F 12 A31HILFE

Issued Share Distributable Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
BRTRA RBRE TR RERE ZitEE -y
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BIT BT BT BT BT
(Note 23) (Note 23) (Note)
(Pt5E23) (F43E23) (P3E)
At 1 January 2017 R2017E1A18 111,261,600 372,383,562 - (15,771,397) 467,873,765
Shares issued during the year FREBHTES 278,153,999  (111,261,599) = - 166,892,400
Share issue expenses M3 X - (5,848,831) = - (5,848,831)
Total comprehensive loss FREABRELRE
for the year - - - (510,737,658) (510,737,658)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12A31B K&
and at 1 January 2018 201841 A1H 389,415,599  255,273,132* -* (526,509,055)* 118,179,676
Shares issued during the Year ~ ANEE B #1785 194,707,798  (146,030,849) — = 48,676,949
Share issue expenses M 3T R X = (730,154) = = (730,154)
Total comprehensive loss AEEZABRBHE
for the Year - - - (92,959,437)  (92,959,437)
Capital reduction R A B A (572,440,929) - 15427,143 557,013,786 -
At 31 December 2018 R2018%€12831H 11,682,468  108,512,129*  15,427,143* (62,454,706)* 73,167,034
@ These reserve accounts comprise the reserve of HK$61,484,566 (2017: negative reserve * HEHEERE 2EMBRIRAZ 61,484,566

of HK$271,235,923) in the statement of financial position.

Note:

Distributable reserve is a balance of credit derived from capital reduction which may be

MeE -

utilised by the directors of the Company. It gives greater flexibility to the Company to
declare dividends and/or to undertake any corporate exercise which requires the use of

BIT (2017 F : AEME271,235,92387T) °

A IR o 88 79 AN 2 R 5 ) B IR BN OB T 2
EZHBRSRE WAKTARARKIRERKRE R X
ETERNABBAEDIRFEFHEZCERBRHRE

distributable reserves in the future.

REEE -
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Statement of Cash Flows
MEMER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z2018F 12318 ILFE

2018 2017
2018 % 2017 6
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EETBHFEZ2ESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BRI AT 1R (92,959,437) (509,376,596)
Adjustments for: BLATIER % -
Finance costs B 75 A A 2,842,992 23,520,463
Dividend income from listed EEEESKRE KA
equity securities 5 (4,116,000) (357,014)
Dividend income from private FhE AR HE A S A
equity 5 (1,599,998) —
Bank interest income |RITH B WA 5 (572) (320)
Interest earned from bond B A B WA 5 - (432,739)
Net realised loss on financial assets & A F{EBBIEZRTIIR Z
at fair value through profit or loss £ @& EE SR EEFHE 6 15,471,888 291,987,125
Net unrealised loss on financial EAFEERERYIEZ
assets at fair value through PREERELEEEE
profit or loss 6 65,049,495 180,976,237
Net foreign exchange loss HNEE [E5 18 58 = 20,561
(15,311,632) (13,662,283)
Payments for purchase of financial BEZRAFESEBIBRIIKZ
assets at fair value through TREE TR
profit or loss (344,464,254) (903,830,718)
Proceeds from sale of financial assets H &% AT (BB BIEZRSIRE 2
at fair value through profit or loss SRE EMMSKIA 361,847,968 943,711,555
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and &% R IER FIBR D (38 )
prepayments 198,437 (85,669)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due  JEU &S 42 A ZIE R /(38 1n)
from brokers 5,740,921 (306,205)
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to  JE & 42 A ZRIEIE A0 (R 2>)
brokers 7,698,731 (163,801,434)
Decrease in other payables and HEMENFIERESTERARLD
accruals (420,231) (199,768)
Cash generated from/(used in) EEME/(FTA)BES
operations 15,289,940 (138,174,522)
Dividend income received from listed & 28 5 H A% B U A
equity securities 4,116,000 357,014
Dividend income received from B FL S i iR B A
private equity funds 1,599,998 =
Interest received B F & 572 433,059
Net cash flows generated from/ gEEBAE(FTA)
(used in) operating activities REMEFE 21,006,510 (137,384,449)
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Statement of Cash Flows
b =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z=2018F 12 A31HILFE

_/1/1/70

2018 2017
2018 & 20174
Notes HK$ HK$
B 7 BT BT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REZEFREZ2HELRE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares AT FT1S 7K28 48,676,949 166,892,400
Share issue expenses AR EE1TRI (730,154) (5,848,831)
Interest paid BEATHLE (2,842,992) (23,520,463)
Proceeds from borrowings BB S HIE 28 = 35,000,000
Repayment of borrowings EEEBE 28 (66,976,320) (45,309,308)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated  BEEEE) (FTA),FifZ
from financing activities REMEFE (21,872,517) 127,213,798
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND HERBSEERDF
CASH EQUIVALENTS (866,007) (10,170,651)
Cash and cash equivalents at REEYHERRESEE
beginning of Year 3,653,633 13,824,284
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #®EEXRBRELRRLZE
AT END OF YEAR 2,787,626 3,653,633
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRRESEEERDN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
— Cash at bank —iR1TIRE 17 2,787,626 3,653,633
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B ot

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

2.1

CORPORATION INFORMATION

China New Economy Fund Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 1 February 2010 under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability. The
Company was established for the purpose of acting as a closed-
ended investment company.

The Company'’s registered office is at P.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1104,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is at
Suite 902, 9/F, Ovest, 77 Wing Lok Street, Hong Kong.

The principal investment objective of the Company is to achieve
long-term capital appreciation through globally investing in both
private and public enterprises that have demonstrated the ability to
manufacture a product or deliver a service that is supported by the
economies of Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau, and Taiwan.

During the Year, the Company’s investment activities are managed
by China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited (the “Investment
Manager”).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of Appendix 16 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”). They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair values. The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") except
when otherwise indicated.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BERREEER
DISCLOSURES
The Company has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for RRARAFEABWMEK T RERAAT
the first time for the current year’s financial statements. E] RAEERTRIBR B i &5 2R o
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Bl I 7 i TRIA
HERIZE 957
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB B 5 3k BEEPERNEER
Customers AERIZE 155 WA
Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of B EA 7 R LARR 1 R E R 1 3K
Share-based Payment Transactions LRZE258 2 REZPEREE
BT
Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments B B B 7 ¥R FE R Bl B 7 R
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts ER|ZE 4572 LERZE R B R
1B8E7 T B B R Bf 7%
LR E 455
REER
Amendments to IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from BREF SR BB BB S
Contracts with Customers HRIZE 1552  ERIFISHARP
&al AHEEHBEA
Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property Bl 2 5t 22 A ERIT B
EA05% 2
&al
Amendments to IFRSs Annual Improvements 2014-2016 BB B 7 iR 2014F £ 2016F
Cycle R 2 18E] AHAR F E i
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Bl B 1 7 HNEERZ 5 R TR
Advance Consideration ZREZew RE
B 225%
The Company applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 for the first time. The RNATIERERBBRT BmEERE 15
nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of these S R BB B T e E R 95K o IRAIRZE
new accounting standards are described below. Several other et AR RN EPHUTE R EHT
amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but AR o Hfhm FIEET RZENR 201855
do not have an impact on the financial statements of the Company. IRFER - MEE AR BRI R IS

Y

2,
!
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Not

es to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B ot

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three aspects
of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting.

There was no significant impact on the Company’s financial position
and financial results upon initial application at 1 January 2018.

Further details of the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies is set out below:

IFRS 9 classifies financial assets into three principal classification
categories: measured at amortised cost, at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"). These supersede IAS 39's categories of
held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets measured at FVPL. The
classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is managed and its contractual
cash flow characteristics.

In addition, the application of the Expected Credit Loss model under
IFRS 9 has not significantly changed the carrying amounts of the
Company’s amortised cost financial assets.

2.2

Hh BT

B HERBEER (B)

B EERFERem T AR
201841 A1 Bk 2 & 15 &) F [E B
BMRBBR S ERE0HKS/MT A : #
REFFE EEERIASHERN=
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20184 1 A1 B & X FE A Il 4 ¥ K
RNAIM ISR R TS B S E R
2B o
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Bk ((IRAFEEBRREIIK])
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

_/1/1/74

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

In line with the characteristics of the Company’s financial instruments
as well as its approach to their management, the Company neither
revoked nor made any new designations on the date of initial
application. IFRS 9 has not resulted in changes in the carrying
amount of the Company’s financial instruments due to changes in
measurement categories. All financial assets that were classified as
fair value through profit or loss under IAS 39 are still classified as
fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9. All financial assets that
were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at amortised cost under IFRS 9. The classification for
all of the Company’s financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
remain the same. The carrying amounts for all financial assets and
financial liabilities at 1 January 2018 have not been impacted by the
initial application of IFRS 9.

The carrying amounts of amortised cost instruments continued to
approximate these instruments’ fair values on the date of transition
after transitioning to IFRS 9.

The Company adopted IFRS 15 on its effective date of 1 January
2018. IFRS 15 replaces IAS 18 Revenue and establishes a five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
In addition, guidance on interest and dividend income have been
moved from IAS 18 to IFRS 9 without significant changes to the
requirements. Therefore, there was no impact of adopting IFRS 15
for the Company.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2018
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Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B ot

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Company has not early applied the following new or amended

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Leases’

Insurance Contracts?

Definition of a Business?

2.3 © 8RB = AR A A Bl B B S

& 22 A

RRAR WAL ERAIATEB/ME E AR
R Z FA SR IERT 2 R B i5 3R 5 £

Al -

B BERE
ERIE 1655

BIER f 5
ERIENT5R

B E®E
RERFE IR
(EH

HE

IR & A

X ZER?

BB B 5 3k
AERFIFRZ
85T

B0 % B 7 R
ZRIE 1058
PGS
RIS 285% 2
1B7]

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or /T“\’;\E AR FEMEE
Settlement’ F195RZ EE
&7

B REEQARREE
F285R 2 I REER
1B7]

el
15 R BIER
=l
FE 852 18E]

Annual Improvements to IFRSs B B B 7
2015-2017 Cycle’ AEWLzmgéT

BB A mMENTEA
B ESE

Amendments to IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative

Compensation’

RIEE EH
NAREGELELZ
MHESEAEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 19 - AE Rk

kv

Amendments to IAS 28

)
T

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

BX

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material? BEAZER?

and IAS 8

B3 % B 75 o o ZE Rl
2015 £ 2017 4F
REARNEEE

Fr {8 7R 22 A E 14

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax B IK%\ ﬁﬂ‘x# %:

Treatments’
F 2358

L 20195 1 A 1 Bl & FAAE)F E HARE A 2K

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 2 20204 1 A 1 Bz & FA R F E HRE A R
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 20214 1 A 1 Bk 2 B FAHFE HAR &£ K
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 4 1 7R 28 T 58 1l 45 2% B AR IE AT AR ER AR

BRATARERR AR B BRI % RS
ERNHE—HERT ©

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Company is described below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

_/1/1/76

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Except for IFRS 16 as described below, the directors of the Company
considered that the application of the other new and revised IFRSs
will not have a material impact on the Company’s financial results.

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Agreement contains a lease, SIC-15 Operating leases — Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two elective recognition exemptions
for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-term leases.
At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a
liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during
the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset
is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in IAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the lease payments.
Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-
of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change in
the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under
IAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The Company
will adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
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2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The Company plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS 16 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and
will not restate the comparatives. In addition, the Company plans
to apply the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying IAS 17 and measure the lease liability
at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial
application. The right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of
the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial application.

The Company plans to use the exemptions allowed by the standard
on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the
date of initial application.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Company measures its equity investments at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

2.3
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/78

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 Based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
construction contract assets, financial assets, investment properties
and non-current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, (only if there are
revalued assets in the financial statements) unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/80

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Company initially measures a financial asset at
its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)" below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI"”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company'’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/82

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Company had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows.

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial investments, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Company commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with positive net changes
in fair value presented as other income and gains and negative net
changes in fair value presented as finance costs in the statement
of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. The
Company includes in this category amounts relating to short-term
receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

_/1/1/84

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

(a)

®)

Recognition

The Company recognises a financial asset or a financial liability
when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way
trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in the statement of financial position
at fair value. All transaction costs for these instruments are
recognised directly in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables and financial liabilities (other than those
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are measured initially at their fair value plus any directly
attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

(0

Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Company measures financial
instruments which are classified as at fair value through profit
or loss, at fair value. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
those financial instruments are recorded in “Net change in
fair value of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss”. Interest earned and dividend revenue elements
of these instruments are recorded separately in “Interest
income” and “Dividend income” respectively.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Financial liabilities, other than those classified as at fair value
through profit or loss, are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised, as well as
through the amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

(0

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments,
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the
contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9

applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under IAS 39

applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or

part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised

(i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position)

when:

_/1/1/86

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

o the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018)

The Company recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

24

BT

TESTBREE (&)

KiIEEALMEE(H2018F1818E
BRANBRSBEREENEIRETH
BERUARAN2018F1A1HZAERN
BB S ERI 3955 E T HEUCR) ()

s ARFREBRAWIREZEER
ERENEN  HECREBE[EE|Z
PR EAEY BERERBER T RS
=HERBXNERRREREZER
£ RN @QARFICEREZEEX
BB Efe M R - 3 (b) AN A
BRIRBEZEEZIABOER K
EI%F - HEEEZEE LR -

HARFEEREAEERIRERE
ZHEM (KBTI BERYE) - ARFRF
MERBEREZEEMGENER K
Bl ¥R A MERIEE - & W EEZENR
BEEMNASMER @R  FEEE
BEMZHIEOBRT AR A EERE
REEHBEE UL RRMEES R
REER - RZBERT  RABIER
HHAE CEREENEBAGIR
[ BR 7N 2 ] OR B B0 HE R B 3 A 0 B S

= °

UFmEZREEFEROAFENES
SHRRZEENRREEEAAF A
AEENESRNEMERNBREE

o

\

o &%

EREENRE(22018FE1 818 &£E
AWERREHREERFEIKIE T NI
=)

ARBHERG L LN FEF AR
MEBEHTARBEEHENEE - &
HEEBRNENRBAOENNAH
BeRnEEARRARUEBNMERSE
MEZRENZER  HEBERNXRLI
MERRR - AHRESREREERR
BRIRFRAEX B B HEME A ER
mARHNRSRES MR EEY S -

KPR ERR AR/ R 2018

87_/1/1/



Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/88

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Company applies the low credit risk simplification.
At each reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the
debt investments are considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the Company
reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt investments. In
addition, the Company considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Company
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables and contract assets which apply the simplified approach
as detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to

lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/90

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9 applicable
from 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Company applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Company applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Company
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Company first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that
are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated allowance
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Company.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/92

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include other payables and
accruals, amounts due to brokers and amount due to a related
company.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
Revenue from other sources

Income from profit guarantee is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the agreed terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/94

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
(Continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised on the date on which the investments
are quoted ex-dividend or, where no ex-dividend rate is quoted,
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Company and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income is presented
gross of any non-recoverable withholding taxes, which are disclosed
separately in the statement of comprehensive income.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income for all interest-bearing financial instruments
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised on the date on which the investments
are quoted ex-dividend or, where no ex-dividend rate is quoted,
when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established.
Dividend income is presented gross of any non-recoverable
withholding taxes, which are disclosed separately in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Company, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as to provide
a constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Company is the lessor, assets leased by the Company
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Company is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

_/1/1/96

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Company receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants
after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at
the date at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by
an external valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected
within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service requirement, are
considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions
are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or
performance conditions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition
is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either
the Company or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTBERBE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties BES
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the ETHIERT BANZALZBERER
Company if that person: IR BERK B B KA 7B &
(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family (@ BEFTAR—BATHZATZEE
and that person: BHREKE Mz AT :
(i)  has control or joint control over the Company; () dEHIs L EE AR
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or iy HAEARBEEATE K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the (iy BEARBHIARAFAEH
Company or a parent of the Company; FEERBABMHEFP—EK
8
or 3,
(b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following (b) WA TNEMIBERER QX EEE
conditions applies: RNAFBHEE
(i)  the entity and the Company are members of the same () HEBEAARFEBER-—%H
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and KB AR (GEERZFZMK
fellow subsidiary is related to the others); FREMETATF KB ATMA
RIE R RIIMEERAE)
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other (i) —(EAERAS—BTEMNEE
entity (or of or an associate or joint venture of a member 257 FEErE(KRE—E
of a group of which the other entity is a member); EMESE E’]W =N
MA%% EE)
(i) the entity and the Company are joint ventures of the (iy ZEBEAARHR/E-—F
same third party; =HAKEERE
(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other vy —EERBAZE=-FEENE
entity is an associate of the third entity; EhE ME—ERBRLSB
=HEBENBERR

=3

Hﬂul PR
e
g‘lﬁf

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (v)

Tt
=
ﬂﬂ

g
il
il

benefit of employees of either the Company or an entity
related to the Company;

%9
e
=
s
_\‘
Ho|

e
ok
=
]

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (vi) FZEBRX@FTHAIATES
identified in (a); R HHEEES
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Company if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to the
Company or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Share capital

The Company’s ordinary shares are classified as equity as the
Company has full discretion on repurchasing the shares and on
dividend distributions.

Issuance and acquisition of ordinary shares are accounted for as
equity transactions.

Upon issuance of shares, the consideration received is included in
equity.

Transaction costs incurred by the Company in issuing or acquiring
its own equity instruments are accounted for as a deduction
from equity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have
been avoided.

Own equity instruments which are acquired are deducted from
equity and accounted for at amounts equal to the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs.

No gain or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Company’s own equity instruments.
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(vii)
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(viii) E% g

BEABEZINREKREZE
BETRHE - BHAER
EWZEATENRENKEB

EEEME
EZEAK

&N

R AR E) A 2R B 15 B B SoE 1T

BREDIK - NA TR EBRE DR RE
BTRWEEBBRIRERER FIIK -

FITRME - WK EE AR °

ARBARBETIRB AT ST ARKE
ERR 58 MZES R - AR
PR 6 S 1 A2 6 XX 5 B R AT IR A A
AR

WA SR TR RERPHIR
WIRBFENRENRE (BEEMEREG
FIBAAR) 2 BRFIBK o

BE e BANEEARART#
mlﬂﬁ%;ﬁ i\ﬁqyﬁﬁ%q:ﬁ@u ?Q/\ °

KERERRAR/ Fk 2018

99_/1/1/



Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

2.4

—/[/l/ 100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions are at the discretion of the Company. A
dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is accounted
for as a deduction from retained earnings. An interim dividend is
recognised directly as a liability in the period in which it is irrevocably
declared by the Board of Directors. A final dividend is recognised as
a liability in the period in which it is approved by the annual general
meeting of shareholders.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and
short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash at banks, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Company operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

—/[/l/ 102

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the company has a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

The Company is exempt from all forms of taxation in Cayman
Islands, including income, capital gains and withholding taxes.
However, in some jurisdictions, investment income and capital
gains are subject to withholding tax deducted at the source of the
income. Withholding tax is a generic term used for the amount of
withholding tax deducted at the source of the income. The Company
presents the withholding tax separately from the gross investment
income in profit or loss.

Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s functional and presentation currency is the Hong
Kong dollar, which is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates. The Company’s performance
is evaluated and its liquidity is managed in Hong Kong dollars.
Therefore, the Hong Kong dollar is considered as the currency that
most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translations

Foreign currency transactions during the Year are translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling
at the end of reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or
loss arising from translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

Foreign currency transactions gains and losses on financial
instruments classified as at fair value through profit or loss are
included in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income
as part of the “Net change in fair value of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss”. Foreign exchange
differences on other financial instruments are included in profit
or loss in the statement of comprehensive income as “Foreign
exchange gains/loss, net”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements apart from those
involving estimation, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Going concern

The Company’s management has made an assessment of the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Company has the resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the
financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern
basis.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising beyond the control of the Company. These changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS,
ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)
Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex
tax regulations and changes in tax laws on foreign withholding
tax. Given the wide range of international investments, differences
arising between the actual investment income and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate
future adjustments to tax expense already recorded. The Company
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective
jurisdiction in which it invests. The amounts of these provisions are
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits
and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity
and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of investments.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Company is organised into business
units based on their categories of investments. During the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Company has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

Listed securities — Investments in equity securities listed on relevant
stock exchange

Unlisted securities — Investments in private equity funds and private
equities

The Company’s turnover and segment result by geographical

areas are not presented for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
significant transactions are mainly based in Hong Kong.

Further details of the Company’s investments are included in Note 6
and Note 15.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RESTER (&)
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Company’s results by operating AT AREEDEE RN DR REEMEZ
segment: DA
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Unallocated Total
ik L FLEmEH AOE Foh
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B B
For the year ended 31 December 2018 & Z2018F 12 31 HIEFE
Segment revenue SEWA 4,116,000 5,286,986 572 9,403,558
Segment results DEEE (55,476,713)  (15,641,684) = (71,118,397)
Bank interest income RITF BYA 572
Unallocated expenses FOEHY (21,841,612)
Loss before tax B RIEE (92,959,437)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Unallocated Total
mEH FLEMES AOB &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
For the year ended 31 December 2017  #Z2017F 12 831 B IEFE
Segment revenue AEUA 357,014 432,739 31,320 821,073
Segment results NEEE (441,543,172)  (31,063,176) - (472,606,348)
Bank interest income RITR BYA 320
Interest earned from bond BEHFSWA 432,739
Other income He A 31,000
Unallocated expenses AOEHY (37,234,307)
Loss before tax BREiRIEE (509,376,596)
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, segment
results represented the net losses on fair values of listed equity
securities, unlisted private equity funds and private equities
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
the corresponding interest income, dividend income as well as
income from profit guarantee earned by each segment without the
allocation of administrative expenses, finance costs, interest income
from bank deposits and the Investment Manager's fees.

As management considers the Company’s nature of business to be
investment trading and there are no major customers, accordingly no

information regarding major customers is presented.

The following is an analysis of the Company’s assets and liabilities by

N
B

SETREFR (&)
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HZE2018F K2017F 12 A31H I
B DEEBEESERARATHEERE
IR EREE EMEREFAR
FELEMAERERES MALEBREQATE
EBEFEREEMNSRA BREKAR
BRI 2R A RBWA - T K
THAX - BHKAKBRITERFER
AUKREEERAERADE -

HREEERRAAFNEELEE RR
EEZAYETIERF  BHMEZIEA
AEEEFHER -

eell

NTREEEDHMHEARARREERAR

operating segment: FRYEZ 4T -
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
FHEE FEHmES et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2018 R2018%F 12 A31H
Segment assets: DEBEE -
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEBBERYEK
through profit or loss ZEREE 52,803,636 33,053,000 85,856,636
Unallocated assets RoOBLEE 5,839,664
Total assets BERE 91,696,300
Liabilities: B1fE:
Unallocated liabilities A B E 18,529,266
Total liabilities BfEEE 18,529,266
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REFHER (E
(Continued)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EWES ELETMES st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT T BT
As at 31 December 2017 ®20174 12 A31H
Segment assets: DEPEEE
Financial assets at fair value EAFEBBERE
through profit or loss ZEREE 75,663,864 106,567,621 182,231,485
Unallocated assets AOBREE 10,365,389
Total assets BEMAE 192,596,874
Liabilities: B1E -
Unallocated liabilities ADERERE 74,417,198
Total liabilities ABfREE 74,417,198
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating FEIE D BRI RN H EBHE AL E B IR
resources between segments, all assets are allocated to reportable s KRS - BARKIE - BIEL AR

BARBRE R EEN  AEEES
DEEFR 2R E

segments other than deposits, prepayments, amount due from
brokers and cash and cash equivalents.
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5. REVENUE 5 WA
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WASHTIAT
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Dividend income from listed equity LR ESFRE A
securities 4,116,000 357,014
Dividend income from private equity FLE AR RE AR B A 1,599,998 -
Interest earned from bond BEHF B YA - 432,739
Bank interest income RITF B YA 572 320
Income from profit guarantee (Note) AR A (P 7E) 3,686,988 -
Other income H AUz A - 31,000
9,403,558 821,073
Note: B 5
Income from profit guarantee relates to amounts received and receivable in respect of a i FIOR 58 A8 B AR 12 4B A 17 = P 38 A9 0 R 38 16
private equity investment in Hong Kong under the profit guarantee terms set out in the LA S AL E PR IS & WE 2 e WL B9 5008 o
relevant agreement.
6. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR 6. RAFEZBERIEZSH
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BEEZEEER
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
EHEE FEmES et
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
For the year ended BZE2018F 12 A31H
31 December 2018 WEFE
Net realised (loss)/gain on BAFEBAEBERIIEKZ
financial assets at fair value SREEEEH
through profit or loss (E18), W= (30,057,839) 14,585,951 (15,471,888)
Net unrealised loss on financial BEAFEBEBERIIERZ
assets at fair value through TREERER
profit or loss 8% 5 (29,534,874) (35,514,621) (65,049,495)
Total of net realised and STABRZEEZR R
unrealised loss included in RERBHIERFHE
profit or loss (59,592,713) (20,928,670) (80,521,383)
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6. NET LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

6. BAVEEBBERIRZETH

EEZERFHE &)
Listed Unlisted
securities securities Total
FHES I ETE S mEt
HK$ HK$ HK$
BTT 7T & TT

For the year ended
31 December 2017

Net realised (loss)/gain on
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Net unrealised loss on financial
assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Total of net realised and
unrealised loss included in
profit or loss

HZE2017F12A31 81t
EE

BRHEEBRRIIR L
TREECDER
(B1R), a5 8

BRHEEBBRRIIRZ
TREERER
iR R

HABNZBRER
RERBREFE

(292,683,897)

(149,216,289)

696,772

(31,759,948)

(291,987,125)

(180,976,237)

(441,900,186)

(31,063,176)

(472,963,362)
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7.
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LOSS BEFORE TAX

7.

The Company’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

BR Bt A1 &5 18

ARRATE 2 BR B AT BB AR ER A T B IRIK

EH
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
(@)  Finance costs (@) BIFEAAR
Interest on other borrowings B E 258 1,019,901 14,929,372
Interest on notes and borrowings SBEREETE
(Note 21) (MF5E21) 1,823,091 8,591,091
2,842,992 23,520,463
(b)  Other items (b) HAIEEB
Investment management fee KEERE
(Note 11) (M$3E11) 960,000 960,000
Foreign exchange loss, net SNFEEIE - SRR 44,472 20,561
Auditors’ remuneration % B AT Bl & 730,000 850,000
Staff cost (excluding directors’ BEIRA(TBEES
remuneration) M) 2,699,065 1,543,790
Minimum operating lease payments B &IERLE
in respect of properties HERK 561,294 1,268,255
Consultancy fee FER & 756,000 816,000
Legal and professional fees EREREFEATER 2,168,369 2,348,503
Commission and other charges e kEMmER 5,672,160 1,801,696
DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EES

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

RiE Em AR R FE D EGDIS383(1)
@ b QFkOEERR (WEEEF
BB BRPIF 2B TARBEZAFEE

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows: ERS T
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Fees we 1,356,000 1,242,145
1,356,000 1,242,145
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEME (&)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December HE2018F12A3IALLFESESEN
2018 as follows: MemT :
Name of Directors Fees Bonus Total
Espg e ALR #st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Non-executive director FHITES
Mr. Lam Chun Ho MIRR &4
(Redesignated on 25 April 2018) (R 201844 A 25 BFT) 117,000 - 117,000
117,000 - 117,000
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
directors
Mr. Pun Tat Shan & A 117,000 - 117,000
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi RS EE 117,000 - 117,000
Mr. Leung Wai Lim RERTE
(Appointed on 10 October 2018) (2018410 H 10 B EZ ) 26,419 - 26,419
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris lorahim Taha Ayoub %5 4
(Resigned on 10 October 2018) (72018410 A 10 B EHE) 90,581 - 90,581
351,000 - 351,000
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Gu Xu )b 360,000 - 360,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REELE 528,000 - 528,000
888,000 - 888,000
HEFEERERR AR/ FR 2018
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued)

—/[/l/ 114

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December

EEME (&)

HE2017F1NANBHLEFERZREEN

2017 as follows: e
Name of Directors Fees Bonus Total
EESHA we Rl HBEr
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
directors
Mr. Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub Faris Ibrahim Taha Ayoub %t & 117,000 - 117,000
Mr. Lam Chun Ho MIRZ L4 117,000 - 117,000
Mr. Pun Tat Shan VE b e 117,000 - 117,000
Mr. Chong Ching Hoi HEslEE
(Appointed on 22 December 2017) (R2017F 12 822 HEZ ) 3,145 - 3,145
354,145 - 354,145
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Gu Xu BLE 360,000 - 360,000
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee REEKE 528,000 - 528,000
888,000 - 888,000

Fees paid to or for the executive directors are generally emoluments
in respect of those person’s other services in connection with the

management of the affairs of the Company.
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9. EER/ARX

2018 2017

2018 5 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries, wages and allowances e - L& NMEBRL 2,625,677 1,506,474
Retirement benefit expenses RREFIF

— Defined contribution plan —E MG E 73,388 37,316

2,699,065 1,543,790

The Company operates a defined contribution scheme in Hong
Kong which complies with the requirements under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF") Schemes Ordinance. Contributions to the
MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes Ordinance.

Under the MPF scheme, each of the Company (the employer) and its
Hong Kong employees makes monthly contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, as defined in the MPF
Schemes Ordinance. Both the Company and its employees’ monthly
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and contributions
beyond these amounts are voluntary. The contributions are fully and
immediately vested upon payment.

As at 31 December 2018, there were no forfeited contributions
(2017: Nil).

ARRBRBERIELTES ([RES D&
EPIERE - EBRERB ERENGE

£

g - REFEERBRERES EE
BI#RAT -

RIERESE ARAR (BRI REE

BREESEEATARESHEBARA (E&
o8 TE S 5T 81ED) 5% (A% &1 2 /B i
Ko ARRIREEEST A HKA 1,500
AR LR BHAESEN A
BEREEE - HARANEREEBNES -

MR20184 12 A31H @ M E M R UK
(20174 : £®) -

FEFEERABRAR /1R 2018
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the Year included two
Directors (2017: three Directors), details of whose remunerations are
set out in Note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the Year of
the remaining three (2017: two) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

10. T EERSFMES

AEERERSFNEEREMEES
(2017%F : =ZREZF) - RENFHMFE
R EXMEB - WIHARBEFRHTE
TTBRABRMESBR=F(2017F : MA) &
= E S M ANFEFIMFSOT

2018 2017

2018 F 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & - EBE R EWEF 2,004,648 1,390,990
Retirement benefit expenses RIREFIF 2

— Defined contribution plan — EREHARETE 43,097 31,541

2,047,745 1,422,531

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fall within the following bands are
as follows:

FEERETEITRABRSFHESR
MF B ATEENARDT

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 = Z 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 7T & 1,500,000 78 7T 1 1
3 2
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11. FEES

Administration fee

Amicorp Hong Kong Limited (the “Administrator”) is entitled to
receive an administration fee which is calculated based on the net
asset value of the Company at valuation day equal to the rate of
0.11% per annum.

The administration fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of
UsD8,000 plus 7% disbursement charge (2017: USD7,500 plus 7%
disbursement charge) and is payable monthly in arrears.

The administration fee for the Year is HK$817,711 (2017:
HK$762,723). As at 31 December 2018, an administration fee of
HK$67,041 (2017: HK$62,719) was payable to the Administrator.

Custodian fee

Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch (the “Custodian”) is entitled
to a custodian fee which is calculated based on the net asset value
of the Company at valuation day equal to the rate of 0.02% per
annum.

The custodian fee is subject to a monthly minimum fee of USD2,500
for the period from 1 January 2018 to 30 September 2018 and
USD3,750 from 1 October 2018 (2017: USD2,500) and is payable
monthly in arrears.

The custodian fee for the Year is HK$264,895 (2017: HK$238,308).
As at 31 December 2018, a custodian fee of HK$29,370 (2017:
HK$19,627) was payable to the Custodian.

Management fee

The Investment Manager is entitled to a monthly management fee of
HK$80,000 (2017: HK$80,000) and payable monthly in arrears.

The management fee for the Year is HK$960,000 (2017:
HK$960,000). As at 31 December 2018, management fee of
HK$80,000 (2017: HK$80,000) was payable to the Investment
Manager.

11.

BT

HEAEEARAR (TTREEAD B
WEBITHERE  HRBEESFREREARN
RARNEEREEFEZ0.11%H -

THRERBERE ARKEA8,000E T
7% X HE (2017 4 : 7,500 7T 017 %
STHE)BMRBERTARBEX -

NEFTHERE A817,711 87T (2017
F 762,723 L) ° 120184 12 A 31
B TREEREL67,0417%87C (2017 4 :
62,7198 70) BIS TITHERA °

gut

BB

BESRITBEENT(EEAD BREK
BAEE  EREESNEFARAR
MEREBEREZ0.02%H -

B201841H1HZ=201849 A30HH
MEBE2018F10A1HE  EEEED
Bi% & A &K & 2,500 35T & 3,750 3%
gL (20174 : 2,500 70) B RAERE
RREXf -

REEZTEE 5264,89578 7T (2017 4F ¢
238,308/ L) - R 2018 12 8318 -
LB #29,3708 7T (20174 : 19,627 %8
T EFFEEA -

EEE

KEEBAERUKDNEAEREER
80,0008 7T (2017 4 : 80,0008 7T) M7E
REA AKX -

ANEEETRE 5960,00078 7T (2017 4 -
960,000/ 7T) ° 20184 12 A318 -
& 12 & 80,000/ 7T (2017 4F : 80,000/
TO) BRI TFIREBEA o
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12. TAXATION

The major components of income tax charge for the years ended 31

December 2018 and 2017 are:

12. 1B

HE2018F N2017F 12 A31BILFE
st EEH% A :

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Current tax: BNERAFH IR :
Hong Kong Profits tax BB S = -
Deferred tax AT I - 1,361,062
Tax charge for the year FERIBRASZ = 1,361,062

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to loss before tax using
the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

EREER R ZBRHRAERITER M
HRAX BB BERREGAE AR Y

follows: BRONT ¢
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss before tax R Al T 48 (92,959,437) (509,376,596)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 16.5% RIEEN®E16.5% 5t H BT I8 (15,338,307) (84,047,138)
Income not subject to tax AT 2 WA (943,368) (116,522)
Expenses not deductible for tax ARIHF A 193,917 192,231
Unused tax losses and deductible RE)ATHIEEE K
temporary difference not recognised RUER O] HF R 1 = 58 16,087,758 85,332,491
Tax charge at the effective rate REBRRE16.5% T8/
of 16.5% IR X - 1,361,062
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12. TAXATION (Continued)

Cayman Islands

Under the current Cayman lIslands law, there is no income tax,
corporation tax, capital gains tax or any other kinds of tax on
profits or gains or tax in the nature of estate duty or inheritance tax
currently in effect.

The Company received an undertaking from the Governor-in-
Council of the Cayman Islands to the effect that, for a period of
twenty years from the date of the undertaking, no law that is
hereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any tax on income
will be levied on the Company.

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the Year.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Company did not generate any assessable
profit for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

12.

BT

BiE ()
T

B SHS AR BEM LR
BH - AR ERBERITMEMD
TR IR A M) Bk Wi e A0 OB E S R AT o

ARFERIHFASHEEESRITHS
AGE > mAGEIEH B+ HRE  5
BB Z &M a9 0] 5LUARE DN (]
BIRHERB T U AR BEH -

5iE

EBNEHINERAEENREBELEZ
EEtERBORFIZF R 16.5% (2017 £F ¢
16.5%) 5t &

AR AT EZE 20184 K 2017412 A
3THIEFES EEE T AERT S
AT E R SRR TR A B RS R B -

EERIA T SR A R B EEMR & RS

BERABENTERMERETHKHR
RHEZREAA TR E RS -
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13. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share amount is based
on the Company’s loss of HK$92,959,437 (2017: HK$510,737,658)
for the Year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during
the Year of 1,076,494,078 (2017: 749,157,841 ordinary shares).

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share amounts
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 in respect of
dilution as the Company had no potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

14. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND AMOUNT DUE
FROM BROKERS

13.

14.

AAREBEESRAARGE
B &R

EREARARBEBEESEULRAQGE
BRESBEEABGEAFEARARAESE
92,959,437 T (20174 : 510,737,658
PBIT) MANE E BT @R INE TS E
1,076,494,078 % (2017 4 : 749,157,841
LB GTESH ©

BRA QR REZE20184F K 2017412
A3MBIEFETEAAEHTEELE
% - BV E 20184F & 2017612 A31H
EFEVENSEEHIERENSESRE
ELFAEE -

Be BANREREBERELA

IR

2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Non-current; JERED
Deposits o 216,175 568,162

Current; mE

Prepayments TE{T 5RIE 564,493 410,943
Amount due from brokers B U AR 48 A FRIE 2,271,370 5,732,651
2,835,863 6,143,594

As at the end of the reporting period, none of the above receivables
is either past due or impaired.
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15. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

BE

15. BAFEZEBRRIIKRZEH

2018 2017
2018 5 2017 &
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Listed equity securities — Hong Kong TSRS BB 48,612,324 68,865,123
Suspended listed equity securities TREBE LMERES
- Hong Kong —&BH 4,191,312 6,798,741
Investments in private equity fund WERLERERES
— The Cayman Islands - HEHE - 531,630
Investments in private equities 2 & AL AR
— British Virgin Islands —RBRIHE 24,607,000 70,940,000
Investments in private equities & N AL SRR A
- Hong Kong —&H 8,446,000 35,095,991
85,856,636 182,231,485
The fair values of the listed equity securities, except for suspended GEiEE EZJ:FEE@;&%?I\ » TR
listed equity securities, are determined based on the quoted market HBENTEDLBERBESZL SN
bid prices available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of the REBRFTIRENTISEREETE

reporting period.

The fair values of the suspended listed equity securities as at 31
December 2018 were determined by the board of directors based
on the valuation report performed by independent qualified
professional valuer. The unrealised loss represented by the decline
in their fair values compared to their carrying amounts prior to the
suspension of the securities were recognised in profit or loss. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, an unrealised loss in respect of
fair value changes of suspended listed equity securities amounting to
HK$2,607,429 (2017: HK$53,300,922) was recognised in profit or
loss, which was determined based on the valuation experts’ opinion
about the fair values of these securities as at 31 December 2018.

TEEE 2 FMERESFNR2018F 12 A
NMNMBZAFENTHESESREBIAE
BEEGEMETZHERSETE -NE

EEEEEAEATFERREREZ
AERBENETAER - Bl =2018F

RANBIEFEE EEEEZ LmER
FAr A EEEHAREFIREE2,607,429
77T (2017 4F : 53,300,922 76 7T ) Bz
NIER LR BEEEREEZSZ S
£M2018F 12 A31HZAFENEHE
ERMERE -

FEIFTEEIRER/R AR / F5k 2018
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15.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

The Company invested in private equity funds which are not quoted
in an active market. Transactions in such investments do not occur
on a regular basis. The Company used the net asset value of the
funds attributable to the investments held by the Company to
determine its fair value as the Company determined that this is the
price at which shareholders could subscribe and redeem from the
fund.

The Company invested in private equities which are not quoted in an
active market. The fair value of the private equities at 31 December
2018 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried out
as at that date by independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Company. The valuation of the investments
in these private entities used discounted cash flow projections
and are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy. The most significant
unobservable input is the rate of return on the investment.

Net unrealised loss on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss of HK$65,049,495 (2017: HK$180,976,237) has been
recognised in profit or loss. The Company does not own or control
more than 20% of the voting rights in any one of these listed and
unlisted investments. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company
is not able to exercise any significant influence on the financial and
operating policies of these investee companies, and all of these
listed and unlisted investments are not regarded as associates of the
Company and are accounted for as financial assets through profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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RRECESZEEFEEEEQT
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KRRRIRE LS RIET RGBT
BRI ERE - R 2018F12 A31 8 FL
ERENQFETERERQ AL &
B A EREEMEMNZAED
MEETESE NESLEEENE
BREEDNRARASRENR - Wi
RAFESEHZEZLARN HRHBEAD
TR BR G AR BIRERIRE -

BRATEEBEZINEZEREEZ
7% 8 35 15518 7F B8 65,049,495 8 T (2017
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. A ARIBEEZ T EREZHE
BY THE COMPANY

Particulars of investments held by the Company as at 31 December R2018F 12 A31H AR RIBE L™
2018 disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as HEIFE 2 EWBEEFISARENFB
follows: i

Dividend

Net asset received/ % of gross

Proportion of attributable receivable assets

investee's Market to the during the of the

Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company Year Company
L] REFE

FRELE ADAEE  Bh/EK AR

FRENAEHE $hBKE EALLA A e EERE RE AEERAM
Hk$'000 HK$000 HK$000
Tin Tin TEL

Financial assets at fair valle through
profit or loss
HATEE BRI SRAE

Listed equity securities
LhREES
Kin Pang Holdings Limited Note a 3.50% 16,314 14,867 MOP7.33 - 16.21
millon
REARERAA ffita 350% 16,314 14,867 Rk - 1621
73300007
Power Financial Group Limited Note b 4.54% 21563 10,744 HKS$65.55 - 11.72
(Formerly known as Jun Yang milion
Finandial Holdings Limited)
EAoREERRLT fith 4.54% 27563 10764 65550000 - 11.72
(NEEReRERERAR) AT
Evershine Group Holdings Limited Note ¢ 0.22% 5337 5,099 HKS0.31 - 5.56
milion
KEEBARAERAT ffztc 022% 5,337 5,099 310,000 - 55
BT

FEFEERABRAR /1R 2018
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. AR REE 2T ERE 2 H15

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (#&)
Dividend
Net asset received/ % of gross
Proportion of attributable receivable assets
investee's Market tothe during the of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company Year Company
5 RAEE
iV KRARE B/ BRLAE
FREAREH £33 EARLLf A i EERE RE  HEEAMM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
S Thn TEL
Financialassets at i valie through
profftor foss (Continued)
BATEFEERIE 2 AEE ()
Listed equity securities (Continued)
LhEERS (8)
Hanvey Group Holdings Limited Note d 260% 8672 458 HK$2.00 - 4%
millon
EERBARERAA Hitd 260% 8672 4563 2000000 - 4%
AT
(China Construction Bank Corporation Note e - 3317 3354 CNY4.11 - 366
millon
RERREORNERAT Miite - 3307 3354 ARE - 366
41100007
(China Life nsurance Company Limited Note f - 319 308 CNY0.06 - 35
milion
REASRBRORRAT Hitf - 31% 38 ARE - 352
60,0007
Town Health International Medical Note g 039% 41835 314 HK$16.03 - 38
Group Limited millon
(Suspended as at 31 December 2018)
FREREREERRAT Mg 0.39% 41835 314 16,030,000 - 38
(R018£12 331 EERER) A
Earthasia International Holdings Limited Note h 0.12% 1,750 2385 HK$0.16 - 260
millon
AR AR Hith 0.12% 1750 238 160,000 - 260
AT
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. A ARIBEEZ T EREZHE

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Dividend
Net asset received/ % of gross
Proportion of attributable receivable assets
investees Market to the during the of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company Year Company
#5 MEEE
FREAT ADAEE  Bh/EY 9]
FREQALE SHBKE EALLA e [ KEFE RE ABERMM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL Thn TR
Financial assets at fair valle through
proft or foss (Continued)
FATEE BRI ERAE (B)
Private equity - British Virgin Islands
LERE-ZRELEE
Gransing Financial Group Limited Provision of quality brokerage, corporate 17.52% 4,79 24,607 HK$26.92 - 2684
(Formerly known as Morris Global Group finance, asset management, money million
Limited) lending and financial adviser services to
institutional and individual investors in
Hong Kong and Mainland China through
its subsidiaries
BHERREARAA BRENBARNEERPEAL 1752% 1279 24607 26920000 - 2684
(NREEREREEERAR) MEERLARAZRIGELL BT
PERE REER BERME
BRRBZH
Private equity - Hong Kong
LERE-E4
Help U Credit Finance Limited Engaged in money lending business in 19.95% 19,000 1210 HK§7.19 = 193
Hong Kong million
EAHBARLR RERHSRERE 19.95% 19,000 71200 7,190,000 - 19

BT
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16. f%ﬂ%ﬁZiE?ﬁﬁZ%%
]

MN2017%12 8318 XA RIERE LS

16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD
BY THE COMPANY (Continued)

Particulars of investments held by the Company as at 31 December

—/[/l/ 126

2017 disclosed pursuant to the Chapter 21 of the Listing Rules are as HAFENEFREEMBERENTEN
follows: T @
Dividend
Net asset received/ % of gross
Proportion of attributable receivable assets
investee's Market to the during the of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company year Company
% R
FREAT ADAEE  Bh/EK AR
FREQALE SBKE EALLA e [} KEFE ks #EEAMM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin Tin THET
Financial assets at fair valle through
profit or loss
ZLTEFBREIE, EREE
Listed equity securities
LhREES
Power inancial Group Limited Engaged in financial services business 4.54% 30,529 50400 HK$91.22 - 2607
(Formerly known s Jun Yang milion
Financial Holdings Limited)
EroREEARLT tEeRRERK 4.54% 3059 50400 91,220,000 - %17
(HEERLRERERAA) AT
Xinhua News Media Holdings Limited Engaged in cleaning and media businesses 1.28% 4218 5455 HK$1.68 - 18
millon
HERAARERERAT tERRRERRR 128% 4218 545 1,680,000 - 28
iy
Classified Group (Holdings) Limited Engaged in the operation of restaurants 0.54% 3360 4,080 HK$0.63 - 212
and the production and sales of bakery million
products
Classfied Group (Holdings) Limited KERERERARERNEE 054% 3,360 4,080 630,000 - 212
RHERH AT
Town Health International Medical Engaged in the provision of healthcare and 0.39% 41835 3686 HK$16.07 () 191
Group Limited dental sevices, managed care business million
(Suspended as at 31 December 2018) and beauty and cosmetic medicine
business
FREAREEEEARAT ERMERRRITHRE BRER 039% 41,835 3686 16,070,000 8 191
(2018512431 FEREE) RESXAEH AT
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD

16. A AR BEZEBEREZFHE

BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
Dividend
Net asset received/ % of gross
Proportion of attributable receivable assets
investee's Market to the during the of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company year Company
#5 £h
FREQE ADARE  Bh/EK AR
fRENFIER FhrE EALLA s i HEFE RE HEEEMM
Hks$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ThL Thn THATL
Financial assets at fair valle through
proft or loss (continueq)
FATEEBRRE 2 HEE(E)
Listed equity securities (continued)
IhgERs (@)
Lerado Financial Group Company Limited Engaged in the financial services, 391% 18,000 2113 HK$53.63 - 1.10
(Suspended as at 31 December 2018) manufacture and sales of medical million
products and plastic toys business
BHEREEERAT UEERRE FERAERREDRE 391% 18,000 2113 53630000 - 110
(Ra0B8E12A31REREE) Braxk o
Private equities - British Virgin Islands
LERE-ZEELEE
(Gransing Financial Group Limited Provision of qualty brokerage, corporate 17.52% 42,19 43,500 HK$31.54 = 259
(Formerly known as Morris finance, asset management, money millon
Global Group Limited) lending and financial adviser services to
institutional and individual investors in
Hong Kong and Mainland China through
its subsidiaries
BHEREEARAT FREMBATNEERPERY 17.52% 42,79 43500 31,540,000 - 25
(WREEREREEARAR) AEERIAREERIRERE AL
PERE ERER EERME
BRRBES
WinHealth International Company Limited Engaged in pharmaceutical products 8.40% 30,000 27,440 HK$4.60 - 1425
distribution in Mainland China through millon
its subsidaries
ERARERAT FREMBATN AR HERER 8.40% 30,000 740 4600000 - 14.25
AL
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. AR REE 2T ERE 2 H15
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BY THE COMPANY (Continued)

(&)

Dividend
Net asset received/ % of gross
Proportion of attributable receivable assets
investee's Market tothe during the of the
Name of investee Nature of business capital owned Cost Value Company year Company
#5 £
FREAT ADEEE  EH/EK AL
FREQALE SBKE EALLA e [ KEFE ks #EEAMM
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TAL T TiEn
Finanaial assets at fair valte through
proft or foss (Continueq)
FRTEFEERIE EE(S)
Private equities - Hong Kong
LERE-E4
Help U Credit Finance Limited Engaged in money lending business in 19.95% 19,000 16,570 HK$15.94 - 860
Hong Kong millon
TARBARAR PERIERERE 19.95% 19,000 16570 15,340,000 - 860
AT
Alpha Financial Group Limited Engaged in undenwriting and placing of 9.99% 8,000 11,350 HK$5.97 - 589
(Formerly known as Ample Orient securities million
Capital Limited)
HEEAEEARAT tEE5RHRE 9.99% 8,000 11350 5970000 - 589
(HBZERAEAERAT) AT
Sense Key Design Holdings Limited Engaged in provision of custom interior 19.90% 25,000 1176 HK$0.94 - 373
design semvices for residential and million
commercial projects in a board range of
styles and sensivilties
RERG TRERERAA R EN TS 19.90% 25,000 7176 940,000 - ENE
SNRBERRTRE AT
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD 16. A ARIBEEZ T EREZHE
BY THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)

Notes: Mzt -

(a) Kin Pang Holdings Limited (Kin Pang) was incorporated in The Cayman Islands (@  ERERERAR () KFEESES MK

and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(stock code: 1722). Kin Pang is principally engaged in the provision of building
and ancillary services.

For the six months ended 30 June 2018, the unaudited profit attributable to
shareholders of Kin Pang was approximately MOP12 million and its unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Kin Pang was approximately MOP209
million.

Power Financial Group Limited (Power Financial) was incorporated in Bermuda
and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(stock code: 397). Power Financial is principally engaged in financial services
businesses.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the audited loss attributable
to shareholders of Power Financial was approximately HK$437 million and
its audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Power Financial was
approximately HK$ 1,444 million.

Evershine Group Holdings Limited (Evershine Group) was incorporated in Hong
Kong and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong (stock code: 8022). Evershine Group is an investment holding company
principally engaged in property development and investment business.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the audited loss attributable
to shareholders of Evershine Group was approximately HK$105 million and
its audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Evershine Group was
approximately HK$139 million.

Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (Hanvey Group) was incorporated in The
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (stock code: 8219). Hanvey Group is principally engaged in the
design and development, manufacturing and distribution of watch products.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the audited loss attributable to
shareholders of Hanvey Group was approximately HK$7 million and its audited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Hanvey Group was approximately
HK$77 million.

China Construction Bank Corporation (China Construction Bank) was
incorporated in PRC and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 939). China Construction Bank is a
commercial bank.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the audited profit attributable
to shareholders of China Construction Bank was approximately CNY254,655
million and its audited net assets attributable to shareholders of China
Construction Bank was approximately CNY1,976,463 million.

BEREFRAR/F 2018

o BEBRMHREBEBBXMAER LD (BHAK
5% 1722) c REETX ERERERERKE
BR7 °

HZE2018F 6 A30H 1ENEA - EESARFE
15 RAE T2 A A 728 P9 % 12,000,000 7T
TR ME AR B B MG AR AE AR B B R E A BIRPT
# 209,000,000 7T °

EReREEERAR (BRERE) RERE
FEMASL - RN BB A ER LW (R
DR < 397) - E S BT BN ESRRYS
ESE

HZE2018F 12 A31BHILHHEE - #RE
b A% 3R FE {1 4% 28 A% 5 1B 40 & 437,000,000 75
TL MERERRREGEEZEEFED
7 1,444,000,000 % 7T

HIBEEZERAERAT CBEE) NEEE
AL - RN B BB A ER L™ (D
KR - 8022) - XIEKEE—HRIREZKRA
Bl TERNEMERBERREED -

HZE2018F 12 A31HILHHEE  XB&E
I % 3R FE 1 45 35 7% 8518 49 /% 105,000,000 7
TC MKBEERREELCEZEEFELD
/139,000,000 7T °

HEEEZERERAR (EREEE) NHASEH
BSEMKY - ERONRBEBERAER LT
(5% : 8219) - EEEEEENERE
NI BUERDHFREM

HE2018F12A3IBLUBEE  HE
5 [ % 3R JE (i 45 28 1% F5 1B 40 47,000,000 75
T MEREERREEGEEREEBNA
77,000,000 7T °

REBZRRITMD AR AR (FEZERRTT)
R BGEMAR S - ERDNE B R ER
£ (BRHARSE - 939) - PEIZERRITE—
ENGE S S0

HZE2018F12A31 B LM BEE -+
BHERBTRREEECEZ SO ABA
R ¥ 254,655,000,000 7 * 1 Bl 22 % 4R
TREABLHEEXEEFENAARSE
1,976,463,000,000 T °
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16. PARTICULARS OF MAJOR INVESTMENTS HELD
BY THE COMPANY (Continued)
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Notes: (Continued)

V)

China Life Insurance Company Limited (China Life) was incorporated in PRC and
its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
(stock code: 2628). China Life is a life insurance company provides a range
of insurance products, including individual and group life insurance, health
insurance and accident insurance products.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the audited profit attributable
to shareholders of China Life was approximately CNY 11,395 million and its
audited net assets attributable to shareholders of China Life was approximately
CNY9,325 million.

Town Health International Medical Group Limited (Town Health) was
incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are listed on the GEM board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong (stock code: 3886). Town Health is principally engaged
in the provision of healthcare and dental services, managed care business and
beauty and cosmetic medicine business.

For the six months ended 30 June 2018, the unaudited profit attributable to
shareholders of Town Health was approximately HK$58 million and its unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Town Health was approximately
HK$4,110 million.

Under the direction of the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC"), trading in
Town Health’s shares has been suspended since 27 November 2017.

Earthasia International Holdings Limited (Earthasia) was incorporated in The
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong (stock code: 6128). Earthasia is principally engaged in landscape
architecture in Hong Kong, the Mainland China and the Philippines.

For the six months ended 30 June 2018, the unaudited profit attributable to
shareholders of Earthasia was approximately HK$2 million and its unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Earthasia was approximately HK$133
million.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2018
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Bt : ()

®

PEASRBEROERAIF (FEAS) BB
BIGEM AL - R MR BEBB AR LT

(AR 5% : 2628) - FBIATZR—RAFR
RAR RE-RINRBESR  BEEAR

BEASRSE REBLEIIBER-

HZE2018F12A31B LI BEE - F
BEASBREEOEEZSNHAEARE
11,395,000,000 7T * if 7 B A 55 A% B8 JE 45 4
FEIZEEFEL AARE9,325,000,0007T °

FREEREEREEFRAF (FE) NEFE
REMARSZ - ELBR D & BB AT GEM £ (B
5% - 3886) - Big F BN FRHEBEER
BETHRYG BEREERBEXDER -

HZE2018F6 A30R LA EA - HERE
FE 4l R 45 28 1% = #1 49 4 58,000,000 7% T -
MERBREEEACEXEEFENA
4,110,000,000 % 7T, ©

REFRBEEHERZE e ([BEEH
R EBZEMBE2017FE11 A27BEE

FEH -

RERFEERZERBRAR OZ3E) NHASA
SEMMAL - ERONEBBRMER LT
(B fR5% : 6128) - ZZH T BHEEE - hE
N FIFRERFSBRG -

HZE2018F6 A30H IENER -z RFE
15 R EE % K494 2,000,00058 7T » Mz ge
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17.

18.

19.

20.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17. RERBEEEE
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Cash at banks RITE® 2,787,626 3,653,633

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The cash at banks are placed with DBS Bank Limited,
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch and Public Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the other payables and accruals
were non-interest-bearing and had an average term of less than
three months.

AMOUNT DUE TO BROKERS

As at 31 December 2018, amount due to brokers include
HK$17,155,239 (2017: HK$5,646,820) of margin payable to brokers
with interest rate at 12.125% (2017: 8%) per annum. As at 31
December 2018, the Company had pledged Hong Kong listed
securities of approximately HK$48 million to secure the margin
payables to the brokers (2017: approximately HK$63 million).

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the amount due to a related
company represented management fee payable to the Investment
Manager. The amount is non-interest-bearing and has a repayment
term of less than one month.

18.

19.

20.

BT

RITRESTDUERERRTERNKRZ
FEMERDAE - RITASEFAL
RIBTERLQE BEERITFENTT
RABRIT(BEE)BRRAF -

Hi BN RERETE A

MR2018F KX 2017912 A31 8 » HinfE
NERIBREETE R TN F B R FEHE
HDR=M@A -

PSR R2 AFRIE

2018F 12 318 @ B &L AE
BIEERE4L ARFESL17,155,23948 7T
(20174 : 5,646,820/ 7C) ' X 517 &
SREFE12.125E (2017 F : 8[F) 7t
B oA2018412 A31H » AR AID KM
%78 £ % 448,000,000 7t (2017
£ 1 #963,000,0008 ) AERENZE
KRAZRES -

FE A — B B X R =R IR

F20184F K 2017F 12 A31 H » B —
MM AR FEERMNREEBEANE
BE o ZABETHF S REREAR DR
—f@R -

KPR ERR AR/ R 2018
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21.

—/[/l/ 132

LOAN PAYABLE AND BORROWINGS 21. ERERREE
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$ HK$
BT T

7.5% coupon notes due 2018 (Note (a)) MR 2018 FEIH 2 7.5 B =K
(Fft3E(a)
8.5% revolving loan (Note (b)) 8.5 EfEIRE R (M (b))

Notes:

(a) In April 2016, the Company issued two-year 7.5% coupon unlisted and
unsecured notes due in 2018 (the “Notes”) in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$71,300,000. The Notes carried an interest of 7.5% per annum payable every
three months.

(b) In March 2017, the Company had a loan amounting to HK$35,000,000
borrowed from an independent third party. The loan carried an interest of 8.5%
per annum payable every three months.

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

- 31,976,320
= 35,000,000

= 66,976,320

B EE -

MR20165F4 A ARBIBEITMEIRTISERZE
JEEMBEERER  ZEBER 2018 F 5| H
([FE]) - A& #54571,300,0004 7T ° 2
BREMNERISEMERENE=@EA I

—K

R2017F3 8  ARRIHA—BBULE=FHE
B 35,000,000 TEK - ERIRFHE85E
AEREREB=EAZM—K-

fEEZEEDRIT :

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 1 year which contain a repayment 14 R 85 1% B 5K
on demand clause BRI - 66,976,320
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22. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the years are
as follows:

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

22.

i FE B IR

FRRERELE (BE) EBHMT

ELEHBEEE (A

Unrealised (gains)/

Losses available losses on financial
for offsetting assets at
against future  fair value through
taxable profits profit or loss Total
BATEER
AREHRR Bk
JERBER 2 SREERER
E& (K3)/ B8 @t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities) R2017F1 1B ZBERE
at 1 January 2017 BE/(af) 88 11,718,779 (10,357,717) 1,361,062
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to profitorloss ~ AEEREZR (MK, AL
during the year ELHE (11,718,779) 10,357,717 (1,361,062)

M2017E12 A31 Bz ELFB
BE/(BfF) A8

Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
at 31 December 2017

AEERERE(R)/FAZ
EREHE (Hi12)

Deferred tax (charged)/credited to profit or loss
during the Year (Note12)

M20185F 12 A31 BZ EXLHBE
BE/ (8B B8

Gross deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
at 31 December 2018

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has unused
tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised in
the statement of financial position, amounting to approximately
HK$431,141,000 (2017: HK$398,689,000). These unused tax losses
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future profits. No
deferred tax asset is recognised in respect of these losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The Company also has
deductible temporary differences arising from net unrealised loss
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss for which no
deferred tax asset has been recognised in the statement of financial
position, amounting to approximately HK$184,069,000 (2017:
HK$119,020,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such deductible temporary differences as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

BT

7K % B 1) AR SRR AR 8,30 4 Y 4 45
R

REBEER - ANRQF A KRR EMRR
FERZEERBEEZ A ARHE
518 49 & 431,141,0003# 7T (2017 4F :
398,689,000/ JT) ° 72 F AR ) A 1A
BB ER A AEEE AR RS - AR
K HMBARAIIBA - MARBERZS
BEBRECHBEE - AR NAIR
AFEBREZIEZEMEEZR
BRI FREATEE A R E R E
R (W B R B I AR R FESRIE E R
T8 & ) %9 184,069,000 78 T (2017 4F ¢
119,020,000 77T) * R AJ 8% Hi 35 8 37
Tt g 1 AT A3 VB S8 AT 0 R B 1 = 5T
HAD 48 5 S AT A B 2 RE AR SRR
EFRIEEE o
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23. ISSUED CAPITAL 23. EBTRAE
Number Nominal
of shares amount
R & E H{E
HK$
BT
Issued and fully paid BEEITRER
Ordinary shares of nominal amount 7K2018F 12 H31H
HK$0.01 each at 31 December 2018 BREE.01 BT BB 1,168,246,794 11,682,468
Ordinary shares of nominal amount M2017F12H31H
HK$0.5 each at 31 December 2017 BREESE T BB 778,831,198 389,415,599
A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as RATIRAE BT -
follows:
Share
Number of Issued premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTRH
A ERTRE  RORER wst
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2017 20171 1R 222,523,200 111,261,600 372,383,562 483,645,162
Rights issue with bonus issue (Note ()  # A& R AT B (FiT &t (a) 556,307,998 278,153,999  (111,261,599) 166,892,400
Share issue expenses RIDBITRZ - - (5,848,831) (5,848,831)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12 A31B R
1 January 2018 2018F1A1H 778,831,198 389,415,599 255,273,132 644,688,731
Rights issue with bonus issue (Note (b)) A% S AL (B 3E (b)) 389,415,596 194,707,798  (146,030,849) 48,676,949
Capital reduction (Note (c)) AR (Bt (c ) - (572,440,929) - (572,440,929)
Share issue expenses B ETHY - - (730,154) (730,154)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 12 A31H 1,168,246,794 11,682,468 108,512,129 120,194,597
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23.

24,

25.

ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a) On 23 January 2017, a total of 333,784,800 ordinary shares at par value of

HK$0.50 per share and 222,523,198 bonus shares were issued for a total cash
consideration, before the related issue expenses, of HK$166,892,400. The issued
and fully paid capital of the Company was increased to HK$389,415,599, before
deducting the rights issue expenses of HK$5,848,831.

On 27 March 2018, a total of 97,353,899 ordinary shares at par value of
HK$0.50 per share and 292,061,697 bonus shares were issued for a total cash
consideration, before the related issue expenses, of HK$48,676,949. The issued
and fully paid capital of the Company was increased to HK$584,123,397, before
deducting the rights issue expenses of HK$730,154.

(c) On 10 December 2018, the par value of each of the 1,168,246,794 issued
Ordinary Shares was reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.01 per issued ordinary
share by cancelling the paid up share capital to the extent of HK$0.49 per issued
ordinary share by way of a reduction of capital, so as to form issued new ordinary
shares with par value of HK$0.01 each, the Company’s issued share capital of
HK$584,123,397 was reduced by HK$572,440,929 to HK$11,682,468.

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

The calculation of net asset value per share is based on the net assets
of the Company as at 31 December 2018 of HK$73,167,034 (2017:
HK$118,179,676) and on 1,168,246,794 ordinary shares being in
issue as at 31 December 2018 (2017: 778,831,198 ordinary shares).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Company had the following
transactions with related parties during the Year:

Investment Manager — China Everbright Securities (HK)
Limited

The Investment Manager is responsible to manage, supervise and
direct the investment, disposition and re-investment of the assets of
the Company, on a discretionary basis, but subject to the investment
objective and restrictions of the Company. The Investment Manager
is entitled to receive management fees for its respective services in
terms of the agreement dated 30 December 2016. Details of the
fees to which the Investment Manager is entitled are provided in
Note 11 to the financial statements. The Directors consider the key
management personnel of the Company comprise of its Board of
Directors, whose remuneration is shown in Note 8 to the financial
statements.

23.

24,

25.

BT

EBTRA (F)
Wi

M2017F 18238 AR A %ETAH
333,784,800 % & % I {8 0.50 4 7T 2 i iR
$2222,523,198 IRAT A% - 4838 © RE (T E
1EFA 3 TRIL) 5 166,892,400 8 7T © AN A Al
B 31T R SR Bk A 38 == 389,415,599 7 7T (40
M L% B 37 5,848,831 B JTAT) ©

(@)

MN2018F 3278 AR A EITAH
97,353,899 f& & A% E 1 0.50 % 7T 2 & i A% &
292,061,697 IRALR% « 2R SN E (T EREMHE
BIZL TR ) /248,676,949 8 7T - AN A FE 2%
17 R 85 R AR AN #2825 584,123,397 78 7T (F1Fk ¢t
M&FAsZ 730,154 T Al °

() 2018412 A 108 - #ERAEIR 2 7 X #E
SRR D BT MR 0.49 78 TT 2 BUR B AN T
1% 1,168,246,794 f B 31T LB G AL 2 FE
R BT E @A 0.50/8 TTHIRE 0.01 78
7T MEKESREEC.01 BT B RITH
A% - BIANA R B 31 TRR A 584,123,397 75
JT B Bl 8 572,440,929 7 T = 11,682,468 /5
=5

BREEFRE

FREEFENEARAN2018F 12 A
31 M & E F{E73,167,0347%8 7T (2017
% 1118,179,67678 70) KR 2018 4 12
A31HB#E{TEEMK1,168,246,794 %
(2017 4 : 778,831,198 IR L @A) 51 &

BBLRS

PR 5% 5 B 765 SR 5 L b BB 40 S A0 B B
HRZIHN » RRARRAFEZ BRI 7
GEES E

REEBA-FEXAERS (BB AR

AHE

WEERABEALERBREE 18
EBRERARREENEE EEK
BEE  WEAIARQAMKEBEEZRE
HIZIR 3G EEIE AL 2016912 A30H
BENHZEGER  BELERMHOSE
[RAFKBERE - BEKREEEAFE
IR R & R I BN B SRR M 11 -
EERE ARREEEEABREHR
EFEENE  BECHWNRE T BREM
FF8 e
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 26. ZERIE S EMTA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZEeBRTARMNREH R REEBEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: s 8
2018 2018
Financial assets TREE

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss:

BATEEBRRIEZ
SREE:
Recognised
as such Financial assets
upon initial Held for  at amortised
recognition trading cost Total
REERE
RERERE 58k 2
i BFEEE SREE @5t
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included in deposits st AR &M EREE - - 216,175 216,175
Amount due from brokers JEM S 42 AFIR - - 2,271,370 2,271,370
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEEBEZINEZ
profit or loss SREE 33,053,000 52,803,636 - 85,856,636
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkHeEE - - 2,787,626 2,787,626
33,053,000 52,803,636 5,275,171 91,131,807
Financial liabilities =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
2 8 8% B A
JfRzeREE
HK$
BT
Other payables and accruals HEMENAFIERETEA 1,293,827
Amount due to brokers FEA 88 42 A FRIR 17,155,439
Amount due to a related company FE AT — I A& A B 30I8 80,000
18,529,266
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 26. REHE S ERMIT A (E)
(Continued)
2017 2017 4
Financial assets SR EE

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:

BRATEEBRDIIR

SHEE:
Designated
as such
upon initial Held for Loans and
recognition trading receivables Total
R ERTERE B3R
EE BHIEEE YR IR Bt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets included in deposits STAEENEREE - - 568,162 568,162
Amount due from brokers JEUL AZ 42 A FRIE = = 5,732,651 5,732,651
Financial assets at fair value through 2 A F{EBE BIEZVIER 2
profit or loss EREE 106,567,621 75,663,864 - 182,231,485
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBSEE = = 3,653,633 3,653,633
106,567,621 75,663,864 9,954,446 192,185,931
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
birg: i) PN
JRZze@mBaE
HK$
BT
Other payables and accruals HEMENRIERESEA 1,714,058
Amount due to brokers PRI 4 42 A FRIE 5,646,820
Amount due to a related company &1~ — Pl B & A B RI8 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings ERERKEE 66,976,320
74,417,198
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 27. A¥EFE
(a) Fair value hierarchy (a) AFEZEH

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining RARERA T ERETRBEESD
and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: BT HE 2 AFE -
Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets F— - YR EEN A ENE R
for identical assets or liabilities 358 MmE CREFHE)
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input FoR—HEKTEABEERELH
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or ERUEREE BHATEHEZ
indirectly observable B ERR G E R
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level F=B—FHEKTFBABRTAIH
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement is RYE - BEHRATEFTEBERD
unobservable (EREES3]

31 December 2018
201812 A31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
% et =& st
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value BRATEEBEREL
through profit or loss: SREE:
Listed i}
- Equity securities —RERES 48,612,324 - 4,191,312 52,803,636
Unlisted FEm
— Private equity funds -EREES - - - =
— Private equities —fLhEMRE - - 33,053,000 33,053,000
48,612,324 - 37,244,312 85,856,636
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 27. AR EFE (&)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZH(E)

31 December 2017
201712 A31H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1 EF-R E 5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Financial assets at fair value ROTEEBRERTIR
through profit or loss: EREE:
Listed i}
- Equity securities —BnEH 68,865,123 = 6,798,741 75,663,864
Unlisted FEm
— Private equity funds -LEREES - - 531,630 531,630
~ Private equities - ERE - - 106,035991 106,035,991
68,865,123 - 113,366,362 182,231,485
When fair values of listed and quoted investments at the MR RE B EmRIREREZA
reporting date are based on quoted market prices in active FENARZRER TS LA TS RE
market, without any deduction for transaction costs, the REE(TMIBRRZKA) - QG
instruments are within Level 1 of the hierarchy. TAMRERE 4 -
When fair values of equity securities at the reporting date N = = e i s /NS |
represent quoted prices in market that are considered less REETERMIGHRE  HFE=
than active or consensus prices derived by third parties using HEREERENT (TEE2R AE
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or AR EESHERTSEETE
indirectly observable from market data, those equity securities R)BHHOES  AIZTABRE
are included within Level 2 of the hierarchy. WE M o
For all other financial instruments, the Company determines REEMESRTAMS - AAA
fair value using valuation techniques. ERGERNEERTE -

FEFEERABRAR /1R 2018

139
1V



Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

—/[/l/ 140

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Valuations are the responsibility of the Board of Directors of
the Company. The valuation of investments in the suspended
listed equity securities, private equity funds and the private
equities are performed by management of the Company and
reviewed by the investment committee of the Company. The
investment committee considers the appropriateness of the
valuation method and inputs, and may request alternative
valuation methods applied to support the valuation arising
from the method chosen. Any changes in valuation methods
are discussed and agreed with the Company’s Board of
Directors.

The fair value of suspended investments which do not resume
trading in a short period of time subsequent to year end, for
which there is an absence of quoted price, was estimated by
the management using guideline publicly traded comparable
method (“GPTC") or adjusted net assets value method, as
appropriate.

In the GPTC method, the fair value is based on prices of stocks
of similar companies which are trading in a public market. A
“value measure”, which is usually a multiple computed by
dividing the price of the guideline company’s stock as at the
valuation date by some relevant economic variable observed or
calculated from the guideline company’s financial statements,
is then applied to the investee’s economic variable and the
resultant valuation is then adjusted by a marketability discount
to arrive at the fair value measurement of the suspended
investments. Such valuation methods are generally accepted
in the industry. The model incorporates unobservable data
inputs, which include market value of invested capital multiples
and the marketability discount ratio, as described below.

The investments in the private equity funds are not quoted
in an active market. Transactions in such investments do
not occur on regular basis. The Company uses the net asset
values (“NAV") of the funds to determine the fair value of the
investments held as the Company determined that their NAV
were determined on a fair value basis and NAV per unit of
equity represented the price in which shareholders of the funds
could subscribe for and redeem from the funds.
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The Company invested in private equities which are not quoted
in an active market. The fair value of the private equities at 31
December 2018 and 31 December 2017 have been arrived
at on the basis of a valuation carried out as at that date by
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Company. The valuation of the investments in these private
entities used discounted cash flow (“DCF") projections under
income approach based on estimates made by management of
the Company and adjusted net assets value (“Adjusted NAV")
method under cost approach as appropriate and are within
level 3 of fair value hierarchy.

A DCF analysis involves forecasting the appropriate future cash
flow streams over an appropriate period and then discounting
it back to a present value at an appropriate discount rate.
This discount rate should consider the time value of money,
inflation, and the risk inherent in ownership of the asset or
security interest being valued.

The Adjusted NAV method calls for a summation of the fair
values of all assets belonging to an entity and a reduction of
that aggregate by the fair values of that entity’s total liabilities.
The fair value is represented by the adjusted book value of
total assets net of liabilities owed to any person other than the
beneficial owners of the subject company, after adjusting for
any necessary discounts or premiums to the book values of the
assets and liabilities to reflect their market values.

There is a change in valuation technique during the year ended
31 December 2018 for one of the private equities held by the
Company as investment, from an income approach used for
the valuation as at 31 December 2017 to a cost approach used
for the valuation as at 31 December 2018. During the year,
the private equity investee did not earn sufficient income to
cover its interest expenses and other operating expenses, and
the Company was unable to estimate with reasonable certainty
whether the investee would be likely to generate such surplus
income during the projection period. Since the forecasting of
future economic benefits to be generated from continuous
operations of the investee became less reliably determinable,
the Company considered that the use of income approach
for fair value measurement of the investment is no longer
appropriate for this valuation. Moreover, as that private equity
investee is a financial institution, most of its assets are, and its
liabilities are, monetary in nature. The independent qualified
professional valuer considered that the Adjusted NAV method
is the most appropriate method for this valuation.
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 27. AVETE (&)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZSH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EATTHFEWABEZEEELER -
inputs — Level 3 Z=4
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input fair value
TERTHE BAE TUBEEBAE
B DVE fERH BAE BE HEAVEZBE
HK$'000
THET
As at 31 December 2018
R2018F 12 A31H
Equity securities in Hong Kong 3,144 Guideline publicly Market value of 5,63  Higher the EBITDA,
traded company invested capital higher the fair value
method multiples to
EBITDA
BRRERES 3144  EWMARRESNE FIRERZTE 563 EBITDAME -
FLAEBITDA RNFEES
Marketability 75%  Higher the
discount marketability
discount, lower the
fair value
mEnEENE 75% TERBENE

B AFESE
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 27. AR EFE (&)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EATTEFEWABEZEEER —
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) B=4R(E)
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input  fair value
TERTERE BAE FUBEBAE
i 8 DVE  fERH BAE BE HEAVEZBE
HK$'000
TR
As at 31 December 2018
(Continued)

R2018F 12 A31 8 (&)

Equity securities in Hong Kong 480  Guideline publicly Market value of 9.18  Higher the EBITDA,
traded company invested capital higher the fair value
method multiples to

EBITDA
BRERES 480 LEWREIESIE k&R mE 9.18 EBITDAME
FLAEBITDA RFEES
Marketability 75%  Higher the
discount marketability
discount, lower the
fair value
mEnEE 2 75% WHRBENE
Be ATESE

Equity securities in Hong Kong 567  Adjusted net assets  N/A NA  NA
value method

ERRGES 567 WEBEERMEAZ TEA TER  TER
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

—/[/l/ 144

(a)

27. A¥{EFTE (&)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) () AFESEHREAE)

Quantitative information of significant unobservable EATTHFEWABEZEEELER -

inputs — Level 3 (Continued) F=4R(E)

Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value techniques inputs input  fair value
TEFAHE WAE TUBEBAE
HH DYE  EERHE BAE BE HAVEZEE
HK$'000
TR
As at 31 December 2018
(Continued)

#2018 % 124318 (&)

Unlisted equity securities 25,783  Discount cash flow Discount rate for 14%  Higher the discount
discounting rate, lower the fair
estimated value
cash flows

FEMERES 25783 BERTER BREHRERE 14%  BREHS
2R RATEHE

Discount rate for lack 25% t030%  Higher the discount
of marketability rate of lack of
marketability, lower
the fair value
HROTIER BB 5%F30% HROTHRBER
RE BREYR -
RFEHE
Unlisted equity securities 7,270 Adjusted net assets N/A NA - N/A
value method
FETHRRES 7210 WEEEFERE  TER TER  THEA
Unlisted equity funds - Dedling price of the ~ N/A NA  NA
fund derived from
the net asset value
of the fund
FrRERES - HSAEFE iER TER  THER
EEZEERHE
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 27. AR EFE (&)

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EATTEFEWABEZEEER —
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) B=4R(E)
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input  fair value
FEFAHE BAE ATEEBAE
i 8 AYE EER BAE BE HEAVEZBE
HK$'000
THT
As at 31 December 2017
R2017512A318
Equity securities in Hong Kong 3,686  Guideline publicly Market value of 12.33  Higher the EBITDA,
traded company invested capital higher the fair value
method multiples to
EBITDA
BERERES 3686 LWmARELNA FIRERZTE 1233 EBTDAMS
FLAEBITDA RFEED
Market value of 16.81  Higher the EBIT,
invested capital higher the fair value
multiples to EBIT
FIRERZTE 1681 EBITHA
FLAEBIT RFEED
Marketability 50%  Higher the
discount marketability
discount, lower the
fair value
THmnmE iR 50% MmmEENTE
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 27. AR EFE (&)

—/[/l/ 146

(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZSH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable EATTHFEWABEZEEELER -
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) F=4R(E)
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input fair value
TERTHE BAE TUBEEBAE
B DVE fERH BAE BE HEAVEZBE
HK$'000
THET
As at 31 December 2017
(Continued)

12017%12 318 (&)

Equity securities in Hong Kong 1,000  Guideline publicly Market value of 9.25  Higher the EBITDA,
traded company invested capital higher the fair value
method multiples to

EBITDA
BRRRES 1,000 EWMARESNE k&R mE 925 EBITDAM®
FLAEBITDA ATESRS
Market value of 10.58  Higher the EBIT,
invested capital higher the fair value
multiples to EBIT
FiREAZTE 1058 EBITHA -
FLAEBIT ATESD
Marketability 50%  Higher the
discount marketability
discount, lower the
fair value
mEnEE 2 50% TiERBENE
e ATEYE

Equity securities in Hong Kong 2,113 Adjusted net assets ~ N/A NA  NA
value method

ERRGES 2113 REBEZEHE TER @R TER
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 27. AVETE (&)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZH(E)
Quantitative information of significant unobservable BEAFBEEWABZEEEF —
inputs — Level 3 (Continued) B=4R(E)
Relationship
Key of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Value of inputs to
Description Fair value  techniques inputs input  fair value
TEFTEE BAE TIBREBRAE
A AVE ERN BWAE BE HAVEZEE
HK$'000
THERT
As at 31 December 2017
(Continued)

#2075 12 A318 (&)

Unlisted equity securities 106,036  Discount cash flow Discount rate for 13%t020%  Higher the discount
discounting rate, lower the fair
estimated value
cash flows

FrTRRES 106,036 BEARBER ARSI ERE 13%%20% BBREHR -

ARE ATEMIE
Discount rate for lack 25% t030%  Higher the discount
of marketability rate of lack of
marketability, lower
the fair value
HROTER BB 5%%E30%  HOTERBEL
B% BHREME  ATE
A
Unlisted equity funds 532 Dealing price of the N/A NA  NA
fund derived from
the net asset value
of the fund
FLIMERES 532 ESEERE TR TER  TEA
EEEERHE

The investments in private equity funds, private equities and LEREERRKRE LERERERY

suspended listed equity securities are recognised as a Level 3 FEEZ LTERFEHFRERRRBE=

investments. TITE -
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) 27. X ¥{EFE (&)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) AFEZSH(E)
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during AEEEZJBATEFEEFHDM
the Year are as follows: ™
2018 2017
2018 & 20174
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January ®1A1H 113,366,362 99,947,569
Purchases BE - 65,380,000
Sales SHE (52,585,950) (27,696,772)
Transfer from Level 1 to Level 3 WE—RERTE = - 40,018,660
Total loss recognised in profit R N R 2 BEAE
and loss (Note) (BT 5E) (23,536,100) (64,283,095)
At 31 December »12 H31H 37,244,312 113,366,362
Note: Mo et
2018 2017
20185 20174
HK$ HKS
BT BT

Total realised gains relating to financial assets at fair ZAFEBBERIEZCHEEZ

value through profit or loss BER W= EE
Private equity funds — The Cayman Islands LEREES-HESHS - 696,772
Private equity — British Virgin Islands LERE-EBRZHS 10,585,951 -
Private equity — Hong Kong LERE-—FF 4,000,000 -
Total losses included in profit or loss that is WERRAHFZEEERBRER
attributable to the change in unrealised losses BIEEHEET ABR 2 EIBERE

relating to those assets held at the end of
reporting period

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss RATEFBE@IEZCREE

Suspended listed equity securities — Hong Kong LEEEZ L TESESF &5 (2,607,429) (33,219,919)

Private equity funds — The Cayman Islands LEREES-—HSHS (531,630) (5,076,972)

Private equities — British Virgin Islands LERE-ABELHS (16,333,000) (15,978,976)

Private equities — Hong Kong LERE TR (18,649,992) (10,704,000)
(23,536,100) (64,283,095)

For financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, the total RIEATFEHERERIEZEREET
gains or losses recognised, including those for assets held at the end T BRI ELEEEE (BERER
of reporting period, are presented in profit or loss in “net loss on EHRRMFEZEEEZ WHHEBE) IR
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”. BERAZ2YAR[EATEERERIERZ

TREEBEFR] -
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27. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Company reclassified three
listed equity securities from Level 1 to Level 3 following the
suspension of trading of the investments. Those financial
assets are namely (1) Town Health International Medical Group
Limited (stock code: 3886), (2) New Ray Medicine International
Holding Limited (stock code: 6108) and (3) Lerado Financial
Group Company Limited (stock code: 1225).

Transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy, are deemed to
have occurred at the end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of fair
value measurement.

The following table shows the total amount of all transfers of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss from Level 1
to Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

27.

AFEM B (8)

(a) DFEEHK(HE)

MR2017F 128318 RRARREEE
FEBERB-HEHLIME=EFEE &
BN EEE=H - ZELMEEARQ)
RREEREEEERR AR (RMHNRE:
3886) : (2) %781 &= B2 BRI AR B IR A A
(B - 6108) R EKCRIEE S
R A& (BRI AREE : 1225) ©

NPEFRERZBHNBRBFRSNR
SHREHE -

F—BEFE_MZBELEEREQTER
=

TRINTHEBERAFESERE —RERE
EE=ZRZRAVEEEBERIKZE

BMEERR:

Transfer from Level 1 to Level 3

BE-REBREE=N

2018 2017
20184 2017 &
HK$ HK$
BT PBTT
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFEBIERFIERZ
profit or loss TRIEE
— Listed equity securities —LhEEES = 40,018,660

The amount shown above represented the fair values based on
last traded price of the securities prior to trade suspensions.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
transfer of fair value measurement between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3 fair value
measurements.

The Company did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

BT

ol

EXFRRERNEERNBLFREEFEEER
ZHZERRXHEZAFE-

\
A
N
N
AN

-

HZE2018F 12 A31BIEEE - F— R
EE—HzBAFEFELEEE - IR
EEBENEEAE =K ANTEFE -

ARARR2018F %2017 12 B31 B
EEAZEATEFENSRAE -
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28. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 28. BEREBRME

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities REMETBH2EE2E

Loan payable and borrowings

ERERREE

2018 2017

2018 2017 &

HK$ HK$

BT BT

At 1 January ®1A1R 66,976,320 77,285,628

Proceeds from borrowings BB ZF1S5IA - 35,000,000

Repayment of borrowings BEEE (66,976,320) (45,309,308)

At 31 December W12 A31H = 66,976,320

29. COMMITMENTS 29. HIE

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had future aggregate R2018F 12 A31H » KA AR T A&

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases HEHE THRRREREN KRBT
approximately as follows: KRBT :

2018 2017

2018 F 20174

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Within one year —FA 176,000 495,000

In the second year = - 176,000

176,000 671,000
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Company’s objective in managing risk is the creation and
protection of shareholders’ value. The ultimate responsibility in
defining and maintaining the Company’s risk control framework,
setting the appropriate risk parameters for the Company and in
continuously monitoring compliance of the Company’s portfolio with
the investment objective and policies and investment restrictions lies
with the Board of Directors of the Company, that will be advised by
the Investment Manager.

A risk committee consisting of executive director and an
independent non-executive director has been formed to monitor the
operational and portfolio risks to the Company. The risk committee
will monitor the Investment Manager including reviewing whether
the investment objective and policies and investment restrictions
are being followed by the Investment Manager. In case of any
deviation, the risk committee will discuss deviations with the
Investment Manager immediately and monitor any agreed remedial
action. For all material deviations the risk committee will formulate
recommendations to the Board on the appropriate remedial actions
to be made. The risk committee will meet on a monthly basis, or
more regularly if a meeting is requested by any risk committee
member.

30.

BT

MHEREEEEREE

ARRT R R E IR B R T 81 K R AR
REE -ARFAEETSEARAELERR
ARAREREZEGER - REARB G
BEHRBR2BEFEEREARANKRE
HANERERE B R RBERAMRE R
MEKRET RETEABRLRAESS
R’RHER -

ARAERIEBREES  KEEEH
TEENBIFNTES  UERARQ
AMEEREEAGRR -EREZES
RERREEEANKE  BEEAR
EEEANEARERKE B RRBREMK
AR - WA TAREE BRZEEH
B B & B I8 AR R BE 1B U BE 52
ERERZENEHITE - BRAEEX
MRBEENL  ARZEEHAEZTEIR
HERBUEE fRITENER - BREZE8
eBARE R MEFMAREESK
BRRAISEMEHSZRNE -
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30.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Company is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investments classified as
equity securities investments in private equity funds and investment
in private equities which are classified in the statement of financial
position as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in Note
15 as at the end of the reporting period.

The sensitivity analysis below demonstrates management’s best
estimate of the effect on the net assets attributable to equity holders
of the Company due to a reasonably possible change in equity
indices or fair values of the listed investments with all other variables
held constant. In practice, the actual trading results may differ from
the sensitivity analysis below and the difference could be material.

Listed equity securities

The Company’s investments in equity securities are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The market equity indices for the following stock exchanges, at the
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year to the end of
the reporting period, and their respective highest and lowest points
during the years were as follows:

30.

HHREREEEERBE (H)

IR R B E R

B SR E R R 2 2 48 B R 5 BOKF R fE R
ErEEEPMERNERESFATE
TR R - NIREARA QB AE S
MR ERRERR B 2B A E RIS
B REREDEA/NLEBREESAN
BRI E MR RN R N/
NP EEBESEFTATREEIRZMN
SR E (MEE15)

AT U DT 5T 72 T Ko 32 2
RETZOERT - EREHREEB
S ETRAZAFEARTREDY S
AR RS A A 1 2R P fe
BfEfbs - EEBT  ERXHRERA
FRTXHBEHTEMTR - 2R

ART 2 BABRRE TR E BB R

FAZRERRNKAR S AL ERFH
BREF - THBHERZANTISERER
o UARERAFESEBNGRE R&IE
ZhanT

31 December 2018
2018412 H31H

High/low
(SR

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB —EEIEH 25,845.7  33,484.1/24,540.6
31 December 2017 High/low
2017512 A31H =/ 1

Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index BB —BAEEH 29,919.2  30,199.7/21,883.8
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 30. IKEKREEBZERBEE (E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Equity price risk (Continued) IR B LB ()
Listed equity securities (Continued) EifEREF (E)
2018 2018 4
% of reasonable
possible change Change in
of the relevant net assets
Relevant market index Beta benchmark index (before tax effect)
HEEERY
RETHAEHN EEFESD
HEmEE HE BAtt (BB B2
HKS
B
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index A B4R 0.399 +10 +2,106,865
2017 2017 F
% of reasonable
possible change Change in
of the relevant net assets
Relevant market index Beta benchmark index (before tax effect)
HEEERY
AEFREETR AEFER
HEDSIEY 0 BAL (RRBz2mE)
HK$
BT
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index FR-ELER 0.013 +10 +98363
Private equity funds and private equities REREELTRILBERE

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, the loss (2017: loss) before tax
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$3,305,300 for the
private equity funds and private equities (2017: HK$10,657,000)
should the fair values of the investments increase/decrease by 10%
(2017: 10%).

MR20184 K 2017412 A31H

 fim &

B2 ANFELERTEKI10% (2017 4F :
10%) * =R © RALEIE 2 R

BIEE (20174 : Bi8) H
493,305,300 7T (2017 4F :
BIT) ©

FEIFTEEIRER/R AR / F5k 2018

DRI A1

10,657,000

153



Notes to Financial Statements

B H5 Rk B et

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

30.

—/[/l/ 154

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Exposure to liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the
Company could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected.
To limit this risk, management monitors the Company’s liquidity
position from time to time.

The Company aims to maintain sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements by the ongoing monitoring of cash positions and
future cash flows. The following table summarises the maturity
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within six months equal their
carrying amounts, as the impact of discounting is insignificant. The
table also analyses the maturity profile of the Company’s financial
assets (undiscounted where appropriate) in order to provide a
complete view of the Company’s contractual commitments and
liquidity.

The maturity grouping of financial liabilities is based on the
remaining period from the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of
when the amount is paid, the liability is allocated to the earliest
period in which the Company can be required to pay.

Analysis of debt and equity securities at fair value through profit
or loss into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on
which these assets will be realised. For other assets, the analysis into
maturity groupings is based on the remaining period from the end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, if earlier, the
expected date on which the assets will be realised.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2018
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 30. BIEREEEERBEK (E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEE £ Rk ()
At 31 December 2018 7A2018%F12A31H
Less than 3 to less than 1to5 No fixed
On demand 3months 12 months years maturity Total
3MAZE BEE
REX  OW3EA  SR12M8A 185% HEA @t
HKS HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS HKS
B B B B B B
Financial assets included in deposits st ARSI BEE - - - 216,175 - 216,175
Amount due from brokers IR NFIR - 221310 - - - 2211310
Financial assets at fair value through A FEZEB BTG Z
profit or loss THEE 48,612,324 - - 4191312 33,053,000 85,856,636
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkHeSE 2,787,626 - - - - 2,787,626
Total financial assets CREELR 51,399,950 2271370 - 4407487 33,053,000 91,131,807
Other payables and accruals EthERHEREHER - 240,327 - - 1083500 1,293,827
Amount due to brokers ERELATE 13,331,731 3,823,708 - - - 17,155,439
Amount due to a related company  [Eff —FBIEA FIFUE - 80,000 - - - 80,000
Total financial liabilities TRARRE 13331731 4,144,035 - - 1,053500 18,529,266
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 30. BIKEMEEEZERBEEK(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) mEE LR (F)
At 31 December 2017 M20176 12 H31H
Less than 3 to less than 1105 No fixed
On demand 3months 12 months years maturity Total
3EAE BEE
gEX  SR3EA SR12EA 1255 HIH#A st
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT

Financial assets included in deposits st A& BEE - - = 568,162 - 568,162
Amount due from brokers eI AFTR 323,500 5,409,151 = = - 5,732,651
Financial assets at fair value through 1A FEZEBBRTIE 2

profit or loss tHEE 68,865,123 = - 6798741 106,567,621 182,231,485
Cash and cash equivalents RehHeEE 3,653,633 - = = - 3,653,633
Total financial assets CHEELRE 72,842,256 5,409,151 - 7366903 106,567,621 192,185,931
Other payables and accruals HiENFERESER - 144,823 628,089 = 941,146 1,714,058
Amount due to brokers JEfT IR AR 5,322,527 324293 . = - 5646820
Amount due to a related company e —REIBIE A FIFUR - 80,000 = = - 80,000
Loan payable and borrowings ERERREE 66,976,320 - = = - 66,976,320
Total financial liabilities tRARRS 72,298,847 549,116 628,089 = 941,146 74,417,198
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument
and future cash flows will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

The majority of the Company’s interest rate exposure arises from
cash and cash equivalents and debt securities.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s
profit or loss for the year to a reasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant. The sensitivity of the
profit or loss for the year (before tax) is the effect of the assumed
changes in interest rates on:

30. B ERERERERBE (&)

A= B

MERRESRTIANRKKESREN
EBEEE TSN XLEMRB N ER

RRABAFMMNERABRRERE RIRE
FEAREBIES

TR AR B RE TR
AR R EIAR RO T A RS
B GURE - ANFE B (BRFAT) 8
ERIENRNBREDH NI SANY
2

— ERBREMRAREFEREMNZ —
FRFSFE -

- The net interest for one year, based on the net cash position
held at the end of the reporting period.

-~ Changes in fair value of investments for the year, based on — ERBEHREEHEENESH
revaluing fixed rate financial assets at the end of the reporting BEZFANRERATEES -
period.

In practice, the actual trading results may differ from the below EE L BEBRRZEE s Tl g%

sensitivity analysis and the difference could be significant. EatTEMERNBEEZBRARE -
Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of
interest changes in
Change in income/ fair value of
Net exposure basis point (expense)  investments

FERA/ REATE

(i) BEH
FEB EXEH BRE BRE
HKS$ HKS$ HKS HK$
BT BT o BT
2018 2018
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%EE 2,787,626 +50 113,938 -
2017 20175
Cash and cash equivalents RekReZEE 3,653,633 +50 +18,268 -
Loan payable and borrowings ENEFRREE 66,976,320 +50 +334,882 -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Since
the Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar, the
Board of Directors considers the Company’s exposure to foreign
currency risk to be minimal; as such no sensitivity analysis has been
presented in these financial statements.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty to a financial instrument
will cause a financial loss for the Company by failing to discharge an
obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is monitored by the
Investment Manager on an ongoing basis.

The Company is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash
equivalents and investments placed with DBS Bank Limited,
Deutsche Bank AG, Hong Kong Branch and Public Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited, which management believes is of high credit quality.

The credit risk on amounts due from brokers is limited because most
of the receivable amounts are from the investments sold which will
be settled shortly after trade date.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations without taking into
account of any collateral held as at the reporting date in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of
those assets as disclosed in the statement of financial position.

Capital management

As a result of the ability to issue and repurchase shares, the capital of
the Company can vary depending on subscriptions to the Company
and repurchases by the Company. The primary objectives of the
Company’s capital management are to safeguard the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern and to invest the capital in
investments meeting the description and risk exposure indicated
in the Company’s prospectus. The Investment Manager manages
the capital of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
investment objectives and policies. The Company is not subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

China New Economy Fund Limited / Annual Report 2018
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31.

32.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Placing of new shares under general mandate

After the reporting period, the Company had raised approximately
HK$21 million, net of expenses, by way of entering a placing
agreement with the placing agent, to place 220,000,000
placing shares to six placees which are professional investors and
independent third party with the Company. The placing shares
are issued at a gross price of HK$0.1 and net price of HK$0.095
per placing share (closing price of the shares of the Company was
HK$0.097 as at the date of announcement) under the general
mandate granted to the Directors at the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 29 May 2018. The Company intends to
use the net proceeds arising from the placing as to approximately
80% for investment in line with its ordinary course of business and
pursuant to the investment objectives of the Company and as to
approximately 20% for the general working capital of the Company
to meet the running expenses of the Company such as rental and
staff costs. Details of the placing of new shares under general
mandate can be referred to the announcements dated 18 February
2019 and 14 March 2019 respectively.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 28 March 2019.

31.

32.

BT

BEMRER
BE—REEREFREG

RREH®% - A QRIS REARENREET
VEERE  MAREXEKREEREY
AR F#) 2 = 75 B & 220,000,000 AR ER
SR - EE4921,000,00057 7T (FOBR B
%) c BERMDZBEARRQANR20184F
SA29BRITZBRERFAS ERTE
B2 —BIRHE  RBEN BT R BRE
ERHFE0.095 8T (RAFRORA
EHHZWHER0.097BT) T o K
NAEEBEERD 2B RIBFEL
80% BIEARAIEE B ZARFAEA
BEBBREZEE  MA20% ARAA
Al—MEBEBESUBNARR ZEER
T mEERETIHRA - BRERE K
RERENKROHFE  F2HA 8D
Al A2019F2 B 18H & 201943 A 14

HEORE o

$F 35 R 2R Y L fE

AR EHREN2019F3 A28 AEES
SHEE R IR T o

KPR ERR AR/ R 2018

159
1V



Summary of Financial Information

BB E

31 December 2018 2018 12A31H

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Company ARG ZEARAEAHKREEz EEREENAE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited 2 (B TR K EXMERE) S0 T
financial statements is set out below:

RESULTS E 3

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
BZ018%  HE017F  HE016F  EHZEN1E HEWUE
12A318 124318 12A31H 12R31H 127318

LEE LtEE LtFE LtEE LtFE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
REVENUE WA 9,403,558 821,073 2,470,078 10,945,842 2,009,770
PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX BRAER/ (B58) (92,959,437)  (509,376,596) 57,041,138 (204,133,713) 162,709,685
Income Tax FiEH - (1,361,062) (9,167,538) 34,597,597 (26,371,862)
PROFITALOSS) AND TOTAL AR LB AEEER
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME B/ (BE) R 2E (B8)/
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO WaseE
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (92,959.437)  (510,737,658) 47873600 (169,536,116) 136,337,823
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
20185 201746 2016%F 2015 20145
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BELA 91,696,300 192,596,874 716,278,353 340,069,316 477,169,115
TOTAL LIABILITIES BER% (18529,266)  (74,417,198)  (248,404588) (15386255  (24,677,703)

73,167,034 118,179,676 467,873,765 324,683,061 452,491,412
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